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NOTICE

To
All Members
Shriram Credit Company Limited

Pursuant to Section 101 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013, Notice is hereby given that the 44" Annual General
Meeting of the Members of Shriram Fortune Solutions Limited will be held on Tuesday, August 27, 2024 at
12:30 p.m. (IST) at Shriram House, No. 4, Burkit Road, T.Nagar, Chennai-600017 to transact the following
businesses:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the standalone and consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31%
March, 2024 and the Reports of Directors’ and Auditor’s thereon.

2. To appoint a director in the place of Mr. Jasmit Singh Gujral [DIN: 00196707], Director, who retires by
rotation and being eligible, seeks re-appointment.

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

3. To consider and if thought fit to pass the following resolution as an SPECIAL RESOLUTION (with or
without modification):

“RESOLVED THAT based on the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee and
pursuant to the provisions of Sections 196, 197, 198, read with Schedule V and other applicable provisions,
if any of the Companies Act, 2013 and Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modifications or re-enactment thereof), the consent and
approval of the members of the Company be and is hereby accorded for the re-appointment of Mr. M.R.
Shashibhushan [Holder of DIN: 00492377] as the Managing Director of the Company for a period of 3
years with effect from 20 January, 2024 to 19t January, 2027 on the terms and conditions as set out in the
draft contract / memorandum, and whose office shall be liable to retire by rotation.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. M.R. Shashibhushan. [Holder of DIN: 00492377] as the Managing
Director of the Company, be paid a remuneration upto the overall limits as specified below (inclusive of all
viz Salary, Perquisites and Performance Bonus, etc).

Term of appointment Yearly Limits of Remuneration
20t January, 2024 to 19t January, 2025 175 lakhs
20t January, 2025 to 19t January, 2026 187 lakhs
20t January, 2026 to 19t January, 2027 200 lakhs

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the said remuneration limits including the managerial remuneration
drawn by him as the Managing Director in any other Company shall not exceed the maximum limits for
payment of Managerial Remuneration as admissible under Section II of Part II of Schedule V to the
Companies Act, 2013 or any amendments thereto as may be made from time to time.
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RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the terms & conditions set out for the payment of remuneration in the
agreement mentioned above can be altered and varied from time to time by the Board of Directors of the
Company in its discretion as it may deem fit within the limits mentioned above.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any Director or Company Secretary of the Company, be and is hereby
authorised to file necessary returns and forms with the Registrar of Companies, Tamil Nadu or any other
competent authority in respect of the said appointment and that necessary entries be made in the Register of
Directors and Key Managerial Personnel maintained by the Company, and to do all such acts, deeds, matters
and things as may be required in connection therewith.”

4. To consider and if thought fit to pass the following resolution as an ORDINARY RESOLUTION (with
or without modification):

“RESOLVED THAT based on the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee and
pursuant to the provisions of Sections 196 and other applicable provisions, if any of the Companies Act,
2013 and Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 (including any
statutory modifications or re-enactment thereof), the consent and approval of the members of the Company
be and is hereby accorded for the re-designation of Mr. Akilesh Kumar Singh from the post of Vice-
Chairman,Executive Director to the Vice-Chairman, Non-executive Director of the Company with effect
from 1% June, 2024 and whose office shall be liable to retire by rotation.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any Director or Company Secretary of the Company, be and is hereby
authorised to file necessary returns and forms with the Registrar of Companies, Tamil Nadu or any other
competent authority in respect of the said appointment and that necessary entries be made in the Register of
Directors and Key Managerial Personnel maintained by the Company, and to do all such acts, deeds, matters
and things as may be required in connection therewith.”

For and on behalf of the Board
Shriram Credit Company Limited

Sd/-
Trina Nandi
Company Secretary

Date: 24" May, 2024
Place: Chennai
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NOTES:

1.

10.

11.

12.

Explanatory Statement, pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’), relating to the
Special Business to be transacted at the 44" Annual General Meeting (‘AGM’), is annexed.

Corporate Members are requested to send a scanned copy (in PDF / JPG format) of the Board
Resolution authorising their representatives to attend this AGM, pursuant to Section 113 of the Act,
through e-mail at cs_sccl@shriram.com

The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding under Section 170 of
the Act, the Register of contracts with related party, and contracts and bodies etc. in which Directors
are interested under Section 189 of the Act, will remain available for inspection during the AGM, for
which purpose Members are required to send an e-mail at ¢s_sccl@shriram.com.

A Member entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to
attend and vote on a poll instead of him and the proxy need not be a member of the Company.

The Instrument appointing the proxy should, however be deposited at the Registered Office of the
Company not less than forty-eight hours before the commencement of the meeting. A Proxy form for
the AGM is enclosed.

A Person can act as a Proxy on behalf of members not exceeding fifty and holding in the aggregate
not more than ten percent of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights. A member
holding more than 10 percent of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights may
appoint a single person as proxy.

In case of joint holders, the signature of any one holder will be sufficient, but names of all the joint
holders should be stated.

Members /Proxies are requested to produce at the entrance, the attached admission slip for admission
to the meeting hall. Duplicate admission slips will not be provided at the hall. Members who hold
shares in dematerialized form are requested to bring their Client ID and DP ID nos. for easy
identifications for attendance at the meeting.

The Annual Report for FY 2023-24 of the Company circulated to the Members of the Company, will be
made available on the Company’s website at www.shriramcredit.in

All documents referred to in the accompanying Notice and Statement setting out material facts are open
for inspection at the Registered Office of the Company on all working days between 10.00 a.m. and
12:00 noon up to the date of the 44" AGM.

Shareholders seeking any information with regards to Accounts are requested to write to the Registered
Office of the Company at least 15 days in advance so as to keep the information ready at the Meeting.

The Road-map w.r.t the venue of the AGM is enclosed in the Notice.
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102(1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

ITEM NO. 03

The Company had appointed Mr. M.R.Shahsibhushan [DIN: 00492377] as the Managing Director of the
Company for a period of three years from January 20, 2021.

His current term of appointment as the Managing Director of the Company expired on January 19, 2024.
Considering his knowledge of various aspects relating to the Company’s affairs and long business experience,
the Board of Directors is of the opinion that for smooth and efficient running of the business, the services of Mr.
M.R.Shashibhushan should be available to the Company for a further period of 3 (Three) years with effect from
January 20,2024.

In terms of the provisions of the Act, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board and the Board
of Directors have, at their meetings held on November 10, 2023 (both the meetings) re-appointed him as
Managing Director of the Company for a further period of 3 (Three) years with effect from January 20, 2024.

Mr. M.R.Shashibhushan was earlier working as the CEO of Way2Wealth Entities. Mr. M.R.Shashibhushan has
over 30 years of experience in Capital Markets & Investment Advisory space. He took over the role of Chief
Executive Officer of Way2WealthSecurities Pvt. Ltd. in November 2007 and since then has been directing the
company in scaling newer milestones. He has played an important role in growing the organization organically
& also through meaningful acquisitions, in the past thirteen years. He strongly believes that a company's growth
is driven by “The best of People, Practice & Processes”.

Mr. M.R.Shashibhushan has served as a member on the Advisory Board of the Bombay Stock Exchange &
Advisory Board of the Multi- commodity Exchange — India. He is a Bachelor of Commerce from Bangalore
University. During his professional tenure, he has completed the 'Professional Membership Programme' of the
Bangalore Stock Exchange, has undergone the 'Executive Education Programme' at IIM Bangalore and the
'Corporate Leadership Program' at Orix Corporation, Tokyo Japan.

Out of abundant caution and in view of the provisions of law relating to managerial remuneration and also in
accordance with the provisions of Section II of Part II of Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board
consented to pay Mr. M.R.Shashibhushan on the basis of effective capital method.

Mr. M.R.Shashibhushan shall be eligible for the following perquisites which shall not be included in the
computation of the ceiling on remuneration specified in Section II:—

a. contribution to provident fund, superannuation fund or annuity fund to the extent these either singly or
put together are not taxable under the Income-tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961);

b. gratuity payable at a rate not exceeding half a month’s salary for each completed year of service; and

c. encashment of leave at the end of the tenure.

It is also to be noted that the terms & conditions set out for the payment of remuneration in the agreement
mentioned above can be altered and varied from time to time by the Board of Directors of the Company in its
discretion as it may deem fit within the limits mentioned above.

Yours directors confirm that —

i.  the total remuneration proposed to be drawn by Mr. M.R.Shashibhushan would be within the limits as
specified in section 197 read with Section II of Part II of Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013

ii.  The company has not made any default in repayment of any of its debts or interest payable thereon for a
continuous period of thirty days in the preceding financial year.
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iil.  The company has filed the balance sheet and annual return which are due to be filed with the Registrar
of Companies.

Your Board recommends the passing of the resolution set out in the accompanying Notice as an SPECIAL
RESOLUTION in terms of proviso to sub-section (A) of Section II of Part II of Schedule V of the Companies
Act, 2013 in order to pay remuneration as set out in resolution to Mr. M.R.Shashibhushan.

Except Mr. M.R.Shashibhushan, being appointee, none of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the
Company and their relatives are concerned or interested, financially or otherwise in the resolution set out in
Item No. 03.

ITEM NO. 04

Based on the recommendations and approval from the Nomination & the Remuneration Committee held on 2th
May, 2024, the Board of Directors at their meeting held on the same day has re-designated Mr. Akhilesh Kumar
Singh from the post of Vice Chairman, Executive Director to Vice Chairman, Non-Executive Director of the
Company with effect from 1t June, 2024 and whose office shall be liable to retire by rotation.

Your Board recommends the passing of the resolution set out in the accompanying Notice as an ORDINARY
RESOLUTION in terms of Section 196 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with (Appointment & Remuneration
of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.

Except Mr. Akhilesh Kumar Singh, being appointee, none of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the
Company and their relatives is concerned or interested, financial or otherwise, in the resolution set out in Item
No. 04

For and on behalf of the Board
Shriram Credit Company Limited

Sd/-
Trina Nandi
Company Secretary

Date: May 24, 2024
Place: Chennai
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Information as required under Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013

I. General information:

(1) Nature of industry — Shriram Credit Company Ltd (SCCL) is a Non-Banking Finance Company registered
with Reserve Bank of India. Currently, the Company is engaged in the following activities:

e To lend money on securities, movable or immovable properties.

e To deal in negotiable instruments and securities..

e To act as a Sponsor for mutual funds and to perform all relevant operations/ activities connected in this
regard.

e To make strategic investments

(2) Date or expected date of commencement of commercial production — Not Applicable

(3) In case of new companies, expected date of commencement of activities as per project approved by
financial institutions appearing in the prospectus - Not Applicable

(4) Financial performance based on given indicators

| Particulars FY 2023-24 FY 2022-23
Gross Income 4003.62 5560.88
Total Expenditure before Depreciation and Tax 3662.58 5729.65
Profit Before Depreciation And Tax 341.04 (168.77)
Less: Depreciation 23.63 69.77
Profit Before Tax 317.41 (238.54)
Less: Provision for Tax (34.83) 31.26
Profit After Tax 352.24 (269.80)

(5) Foreign investments or collaborations, if any:

The Company has not made any foreign investments and neither entered into any foreign collaborations.

I1. Information about Mr. M.R.Shashibhushan:

(1) Background details - Mr. M.R.Shashibhushan was earlier working as the CEO of Way 2 Wealth
Entities. Mr. M.R.Shashibhushan has over 25 years of experience in Capital Markets & Investment
Adpvisory space. He took over the role of Chief Executive Officer of Way2WealthSecurities Pvt. Ltd. in
November 2007 and since then has been directing the company in scaling newer milestones. He has
played an important role in growing the organization organically & also through meaningful
acquisitions, in the past thirteen years. He strongly believes that a company's growth is driven by “The
best of People, Practice & Processes”.

Mr. M.R.Shashibhushan has served as a member on the Advisory Board of the Bombay Stock
Exchange & Advisory Board of the Multi- commodity Exchange — India. He is a Bachelor of
Commerce from Bangalore University. During his professional tenure, he has completed the
'Professional Membership Programme' of the Bangalore Stock Exchange, has undergone the 'Executive
Education Programme' at IIM Bangalore and the 'Corporate Leadership Program' at Orix Corporation,
Tokyo Japan.
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(2) Past remuneration:

Term of appointment Yearly Limits of Remuneration
20t January, 2021 to 19 January, 2022 145 lakhs
20t January, 2022 to 19t January, 2023 155 lakhs
20t January, 2023 to 19t January, 2024 165 lakhs

(3) Recognition or awards- NIL

(4) Job profile and his suitability:

The role of Mr. Shashibhushan as Managing Director of the Company includes overall responsibility for the
growth and day to day business activity of the Company. He provides necessary strategic direction to all

business lines/interests of the Company. He is instrumental in the overall business development of the Company
as well.

(5) Remuneration proposed:

Term of appointment Yearly Limits of Remuneration
20t January, 2024 to 19t January, 2025 175 lakhs
20t January, 2025 to 19t January, 2026 187 lakhs
20t January, 2026 to 19t January, 2027 200 lakhs

(6) Comparative remuneration profile with respect to industry, size of the company, profile of the position
and person (in case of expatriates the relevant details would be with respect to the country of his origin):

The remuneration proposed to be paid to Mr. M.R.Shashibhushan is in line with Managing Directors and
Whole-time Directors of other companies keeping in view his job profile, the size of operations and complexity
of business of the Company.

(7) Pecuniary relationship directly or indirectly with the company, or relationship with the managerial
personnel, if any. - NIL
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III1. Other information:

(1) | Reasons of loss or inadequate | The Company has not incurred any loss but earned a
profits profit after tax of Rs. 352.24 lakhs for the financial year
ended 315t March, 2024. The Company acts as the
holding company of six operating companies engaged in
the business of broking & DP, mutual fund, distribution
of fixed investment products for retail investors in
addition to managing a loan book.

(2) | Steps taken or proposed to be taken | The Company has not incurred any loss, but out of out of
for improvement abundant caution and in view of the relevant extant
provisions of law relating to managerial remuneration,
the Company agreed to pay the above remuneration as
the minimum remuneration.

(3) | Expected increase in productivity | During the current financial year 2023-24, the Company
and profits in measurable terms expects to have a substantial increase in the profit.

For and on behalf of the Board

Sd/-
Trina Nandi
Company Secretary

Date: May 24, 2024
Place: Chennai
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Information as required under Secretarial Standard -2

Name Mr. M.R.Shashibhushan

Age 55 Years (01/07/1968)

Qualifications He is a Bachelor of Commerce from Bangalore
University. During his professional tenure, he has
completed  the 'Professional Membership

Programme' of the Bangalore Stock Exchange, has
undergone the 'Executive Education Programme' at
IIM Bangalore and the 'Corporate Leadership
Program' at Orix Corporation, Tokyo Japan
Experience 25+ years of experience in Capital Markets &
Investment Advisory space

Terms and  conditions  of | 3 years i.e., from 20th January, 2024 whose office
reappointment shall not be retirement by rotation.

Remuneration sought to be paid 20th January, 2024 to 19th January, 2025 -175 lakhs
20th January, 2025 to 19th January, 2026 -187 lakhs
20th January, 2026 to 19th January, 2027 -200 lakhs

Remuneration last drawn NIL

Date of first appointment on the | 20/01/2021
Board

Shareholding in the Company NIL

Relationship with other Directors, | NIL
Manager and other Key
Managerial Personnel of the
company

Number of Meetings of the Board | For the FY 2023-24 : 4 meetings
attended during the year

Directorships, Membership/ | He is the Director in the following Companies:
Chairmanship of Committees of | 1. Way2wealth Commodities Pvt. Ltd.
the Boards of other companies 2. SEA Funds Management India Pvt. Ltd.

3. Shriram Wealth Ltd.
4. Shriram Fortune Solutions Ltd.

He is in the Securities Committee of Shriram
Wealth Ltd. and Shriram Fortune Solutions Ltd.

For and on behalf of the Board
Shriram Credit Company Limited

Sd/-
Trina Nandi
Company Secretary

Date: May 24, 2024
Place: Chennai
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ATTENDANCE SLIP

(To be presented at the entrance)

44™ ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

on

Tuesday, August 27, 2024 at 12:30 p.m. (IST)

at

Shriram House, No. 4, Burkit Road, T.Nagar, Chennai-600017

Folio No. DP ID No. Client ID No.
Name of the Member Signature
Name of the Proxy holder Signature

1.  Only Member/Proxyholder can attend the Meeting.

2. Member/Proxyholder should bring his/her copy of the Annual Report for reference at the Meeting.
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MGT-11
PROXY FORM

(Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(3) of the Companies (Management and
Administration) Rules, 2014)

Name of the Member(8): .....viiiiii i e
Registered Address: .....ouviriiritit e e
E-mail id: ..ooeiiiiiiie e

I/We, being the member(s) of SHRIRAM CREDIT COMPANY LIMITED hereby appoint
P ' N
E-mail ;..o
Address: ..o
SIgNature ........coovviiiiiiiiii e

or failing him/her

2. NAMEC: (v
E-mail: oo
AdAIess: ....oovvieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e
SIgNAtUre: ..ot

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the Annual General Meeting
of the Company to be held on Tuesday, August 27, 2024 at 12:30 p.m. (IST) at Shriram House, No. 4,
Burkit Road, T.Nagar, Chennai-600017 and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are
indicated below:

1. To consider and adopt the audited standalone and consolidated financial statements of the Company for the
financial year ended March 31, 2024 and the reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon; and the
report of Auditors thereon.

2. To appoint a director in the place of Mr. Jasmit Singh Gujral [DIN: 00196707], who retires by rotation and
being eligible, seeks re-appointment.

3. To consider the re-appointment of Mr. M.R. Shashibhushan [Holder of DIN: 00492377] as Managing
Director of the Company for a period of 3 years with effect from 20" January, 2024 to 19" January, 2027.

4. To consider the re-designation of Mr. Akhilesh Kumar Singh [holder of DIN: 00421577] from the position of
Vice-Chairman, Executive Director to Vice-Chairman, Non-executive Director with effect from 1% June,

2024.
Affix
Revenue
Signed this on , 2024 Stamp
Signature of shareholder ; Signature of Proxy holder(s)
NOTE: This Form in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered Olffice

of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting.
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ROUTE MAP OF VENUE OF THE 44™ ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF THE COMPANY
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NOTICE-CUM-ADDENDUM

ADDENDUM TO THE NOTICE OF THE 44" ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that in addition to the Agenda Items mentioned in the original Notice dated 24t May,
2024, the following items shall be transacted as Special Business at the 44" Annual General Meeting of the
Members of Shriram Credit Company Limited scheduled to be held on Tuesday, August 27, 2024 at 12:30
p-m. (IST) at Shriram House, No. 4, Burkit Road, T.Nagar, Chennai-600017.

SPECIAL BUSINESS:
Item No. 5

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an
ORDINARY RESOLUTION:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provisions of Section 160, 161 and other applicable provisions, if any, of
the Companies Act, 2013, Mrs. Subhasri Sriram [Holder of DIN: 01998599], who was appointed by the
Board of Directors as an additional director of the Company with effect from 7™ August, 2024 and who to
holds office up to the date of this Annual General Meeting, be and is hereby appointed as a Director of the
Company, who shall be liable to retire by rotation.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any Director or the Company Secretary of the Company be and is hereby
severally authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things, as may be necessary in this regard to give
effect to this resolution.”

For and on behalf of the Board
Shriram Credit Company Limited

Sd/-
Trina Nandi
Company Secretary

Date: 7™ August, 2024
Place: Bengaluru
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013
Item No. 5

Mrs. Subhasri Sriram [Holder of DIN: 01998599] was appointed as Additional Director of the Company in
the Board Meeting held on 7% August, 2024 based on the recommendations of the Nomination &
Remuneration Committee in accordance with the provisions contained in Section 196 and 197 of the
Companies Act, 2013.

Your Board recommends the passing of the resolution set out in the accompanying Notice as an
ORDINARY RESOLUTION in terms of Section 160,161, 197 and 198 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Your directors confirm that the Company has not made any default in repayment of any of'its debts or interest
payable thereon for a continuous period of thirty days in the preceding financial year.

Except Mrs. Subhasri Sriram [Holder of DIN: 019985991, being appointee, none of the Directors and Key
Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives is concerned or interested, financial or otherwise,
in the resolutions set out in Item No. 5

For and on behalf of the Board
Shriram Credit Company Limited

Sd/-
Trina Nandi
Company Secretary

Date: 7™ August, 2024
Place: Bengaluru
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Information as required under Secretarial Standard -2

Name Mrs. Subhasri Sriram
Age 55 years (08-04-1969)
Qualifications ICMA, ACS
Experience 30+ years

Terms and conditions of appointment | Aslaid down in the Nomination & Remuneration

Policy of the Company.
Remuneration sought to be paid -
Remuneration last drawn -
Date of first appointment on the 7™ August, 2024.
Board
Shareholding in the Company NIL

Relationship with other Directors, | NIL
Manager and other Key Managerial
Personnel of the company

Number of Meetings of the Board NIL for FY 2023-24 as she is getting appointed
attended during the year in FY 2024-25.
Directorships, Membership/ | Mrs. Subhasri Sriram is the Director in the

Chairmanship of Committees of the | following Companies:

Boards of other companies -TVS Electronics Limited

-Niyogin Fintech Limited

-Shriram Asset Management Company Limited
-Shriram Overseas Investments Private Limited
-Earlysalary Services Private Limited

-Shriram Asset Reconstruction Private Limited
-Social Worth Technologies Private Limited
-Iserveu Technology Private Limited

-Shriram Capital Private Limited

-Shriram Life Insurance Company Limited
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To
The Members,

Your Directors are pleased to present the Forty-fourth Annual Report together with the Audited Financial
Statements for the year ended 315t March, 2024 of Shriram Credit Company Limited (‘the Company’).

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
Amount in Lakhs. (Rs.)
Financial year
PARTICULARS
Standalone Consolidated
2023-24 2022-232 2023-24%* 2022-2374

Gross Income 4003.62 5560.88 30582.65 35352.26
Total Expenditure before 3662.58 5729.65 26705.94 3524778
Depreciation and Tax
Profit Before Depreciation And Tax 341.04 (168.77) 3876.71 104.48
Less: Depreciation 23.63 69.77 1074.11 1007.65
Profit Before Tax 317.41 (238.54) 2802.60 (903.17)
Less: Provision for Tax (34.83) 31.26 463.52 21.11
Profit After Tax 352.24 (269.80) 2339.08 (924.28)
Other Comprehensive Income - .08 43.63 17.98
Less: Non Controlling Interest - - (246.60) (125.00)
Addf Adjustment against retained ) ) 1056.50 144.65
earnings
Balance of Profit brought forward 7201.20 7470.92 14604.46 15,241.11
Balance = available for 7553.44 7201.20 18290.27 14,604.46
appropriation
Appropriations
Net Interim Dividend Paid - - - -
Transfer to General Reserve = - - -
Transfer to Statutory Reserve 70.45 - 70.45 -
Surplus carried to Balance Sheet 7482.99 7201.20 18219.82 14,604.46

Note 1: **M/s Way2Wealth Securities Pvt. Ltd. (“transferor company”), a subsidiary company of Shriram
Credit Company Ltd. (SCCL), was amalgamated with its wholly owned subsidiary M/s Way2Wealth Brokers
Pvt. Ltd. (“transferee company”), with effect from 1** April, 2023 vide order of the Regional Director dated
18" July, 2023. The consolidated figures for FY 2023-24 represents the merged financials of M/s Way2Wealth
Securities Pvt. Ltd. with its the wholly owned subsidiary M/s Way2Wealth Brokers Pvt. Ltd.

Note 2: **The Company had also acquired the equity stake of M/s NOVAC Digital Services Pvt. Ltd. on 24"
July, 2023. The consolidated figures for FY 2023-24 also represents the same.
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Note 3: "the standalone figures for FY 2022-23 represents the merged financials of the wholly owned
subsidiary viz Shriram Financial Products Solutions (Chennai) Pvt. Ltd., and the same has been given effect in
the consolidated financial statements of the Company for FY 2022-23.

Note 4: “M/s Insight Commodities & Futures Pvt. Ltd. (“transferor company”) was amalgamated with M/s
Shriram Insight Share Brokers Ltd. (“transferee company”), a subsidiary company of Shriram Credit
Company Ltd. (SCCL),with effect from I°' January, 2022 vide order of the Regional Director dated 19" May,
2022, which was received post the finalisation of SCCL Consolidated Financial Statements for FY 2021-22.
Hence, the effect of this amalgamation is now given effect in the Consolidated Financial Statements for FY
2022-23.

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

Your Company has during the year under review had earned a standalone total income of Rs. 4003.62
lacs and a profit of Rs. 352.24 Lacs as compared to the total income of Rs. 5560.88 Lacs and a loss of
Rs. 269.80 Lacs earned during the last year.

CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS

There is no change in the nature of business of the Company.

CHANGE IN CAPITAL STRUCTURE

During the year under review, there is no change in Capital Structure of the Company*. The Capital
Structure of the Company for FY 2023-24 is as follows:

The Authorised Share Capital: Rs.52,00,00,000 (2,70,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10 each and
2,50,00,000 Non Convertible Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs. 10 each,).

Issued, Subscribed and Paid up Share Capital: Rs. 48,06,31,290 (2,40,63,129 Equity Shares of Rs.10
each and 2,40,00,000 Non Convertible Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs. 10/- each)

a. BUY BACK OF SECURITIES
The Company has not bought back any of its securities during the year under review.
b. SWEAT EQUITY

The Company has not issued any Sweat Equity Shares during the year under review.
c. BONUS SHARES

The Company has not issued any Bonus Shares during the year under review.
d. RIGHTS ISSUE

The Company has not issued any rights shares during the year under review.
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Note 5:*The Board of Directors of the Company in its meeting held on 24th May, 2024 has given approval to
do part redemption of 30,00,000 6.5% Non-Convertible Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs. 10
each amounting to Rs. 3,00,00,000/- (Rupees Three Crores). Hence, post redemption of such preference
shares, the Issued, Subscribed and Paid up Share Capital of the Company would be: Rs. 45,06,31,290
(2,40,63,129 Equity Shares of Rs.10 each and 2,10,00,000 Non-Convertible Cumulative Redeemable
Preference Shares of Rs. 10/- each) in the current financial year i.e. FY 2024-25.

DIVIDEND & TRANSFER TO RESERVES

Keeping in view of the future strategic initiatives of the Company, your Directors did not recommend any
dividend for both equity and preference shares for the year ended 31 March, 2024. However, the
Company has paid arrear dividend to the preference shareholder amounting to Rs. 41.88 Lacs for the
previous years.

Your Company has transferred a sum of Rs. 70.45 Lacs to Statutory Reserve in terms of Section 45 IC of
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 as it has earned profit for FY 2023-24.

TRANSFER OF UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION
FUND

The provisions of Section 125(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 do not apply as the Company has not
declared any dividend on equity as well as preference shares during last year.

EVENTS SUBSEQUENT TO THE DATE OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In compliance with regulatory requirements, it is duly noted that subsequent to the date of the financial
statements, there have been no material events or transactions impacting the financial position or
performance of the company. The company remains committed to maintaining transparency and
adherence to accounting standards.

DIRECTORS & KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

a. Appointment of Directors:

The Board of Directors has considered re-appointment of Mr. M.R. Shashibhushan [holder of
DIN: 00492377] as the Managing Director of the Company for a second term of 3 years with
effect from 20th January, 2024 to 19th January, 2027 at the Board Meeting of the Company held
on 10th November, 2023. Resolutions seeking approval of the members for re-appointment of
Mr. M.R. Shashibhushan as the Managing Director of the Company has been included in the
notice calling the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

There were no other instances of appointment of Directors during the year under review i.e. for
FY 2023-24.

b. Resignation/ Cessation of Directors:

There were no instances of resignation/ cessation of Directors during the year under review i.e.
for FY 2023-24.
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c. Retirement by Rotation:

Mr. Jasmit Singh Gujral [DIN: 00196707], Director will retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual
General Meeting and being eligible offered himself for re-appointment.

d. Whole-time Key Managerial Personnel:

There were no instances of appointment of Whole-time Key Managerial Personnel during the
year under review.

e. Change in Designation of the Directors:
Mr. Akhilesh Kumar Singh [holder of DIN: 00421577], who was designated as the Executive
Director & Vice-Chairman of the Company has expressed his willingness to be re-designated to

Non-executive Director as he is not involved in the day to day affairs of the Company.

The Board considered his proposal and gave consent to re-designate him as the Non-Executive
Director of the Company at its meeting held on 24t May, 2024.

DECLARATION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

The Independent Directors have submitted their disclosures to the Board that they fulfil all the
requirements as stipulated in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 so as to qualify themselves to be
appointed as Independent Directors under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the relevant
rules.

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

Your Company’s Board has the following committees:

Audit Committee

Nomination and Remuneration Committee
Risk Management Committee

Corporate Social Responsibility Committee
Asset- Liability Management Committee
IT Strategy Committee

Finance Committee

Securities Committee

Credit Committee

e il S

Details of terms of reference of the Committees have been duly approved by the Board of Directors and
they are available with the Company.

POLICIES OF THE COMPANY:

The Company has framed the following policies in line with the Companies Act, 2013 (including various
Rules and Regulations, amendments and modifications) and Master Direction issued by Reserve Bank of
India. The policies are reviewed from time to time to with latest amendments and circulars issued by the
concerned Regulators.
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Policy on Related party Transactions
Nomination & Remuneration Policy
Corporate Social Responsibility Policy
Loan cum Credit Policy

Investment Policy

Liquidity Management Framework

Risk Management Policy

Asset- Liability Management Policy

Policy on Information Technology

Fair Practice Code

Policy on Prevention of Money Laundering
KYC Policy

Fit & Proper Policy

Liquidity Policy

Interest Rate Policy

The Internal Guidelines on Corporate Governance

BOBBTIARTIE@R MO AL T

The policies have been duly approved by the Board of Directors and can be accessed at website of the
Company i.e. www.shriramcredit.in

BOARD EVALAUTION

Annual Performance Evaluation was conducted for all Board Members as well as the working of the
Board and its Committees. This evaluation was led by the Chairman of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee with specific focus on performance and effective functioning of the Board. The
Board evaluation framework has been designed in compliance with the requirements under the
Companies Act, 2013. Evaluation of the Board was based on criteria such as composition and role of the
Board, Board communication and relationships, functioning of Board Committees, review of
performance of Executive Directors, succession planning, strategic planning, etc.

Evaluation of Committees was based on criteria such as adequate independence of each Committee,
frequency of meetings and time allocated for discussions at meetings, functioning of Board Committees
and effectiveness of its advice/recommendation to the Board, etc.

Evaluation of Directors was based on criteria such as participation and contribution in Board and
Committee Meetings, representation of shareholder interest and enhancing shareholder value, experience
and expertise to provide feedback and guidance to top management on business strategy, governance, risk
and understanding of the organization’s strategy, etc.

DIRECTOR’S RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

In pursuance of Section 134 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Directors hereby confirm that:

(a) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable Accounting Standards had been followed
along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

(b) the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the
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state of affairs of the Company at the end of the Financial Year and of the profit and loss of the
Company for that period;

(c) the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of
the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

(d) the directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and

(e) the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable
laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

COMPANY’S POLICY RELATING TO DIRECTORS APPOINTMENT, PAYMENT OF
REMUNERATION AND DISCHARGE OF THEIR DUTIES

The Company has formulated a Remuneration Policy relating to appointment of Directors, payment of
Managerial remuneration, Directors’ qualifications, positive attributes, independence of Directors and
other related matters as provided under Section 178(3) of the Companies Act, 2013. The policy is based
on the guiding principle aimed towards retaining and rewarding performers. The updated policy is
available on the website of the Company and can be accessed at www.shriramcredit.in.

However, the payment of remuneration to the Directors is as per the Management policy and within the
permissible limits of the Companies Act, 2013. The Company also has in place Fit & Proper Policy
framed in terms of paragraph 72 (iv) of Chapter XI of Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial
Company - Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Company and Deposit taking Company (Reserve
Bank) Directions, 2016 dated September 1, 2016. The policy is available on the website of the Company
and can be accessed at www.shriramcredit.in.

The Company has constituted Nomination & Remuneration Committee in terms of Section 178(3) of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 4 of the Companies (Appointment & Qualifications of the
Directors), Rules, 2014 wherein it has two Independent Directors.

Mr. Mohan Natarajan and Dr. Saleem K.ali are the Independent Directors in the Committee.

During the Financial Year 2023-24, the Committee has met only once i.e. on 10t November, 2023.

The performance of the members of the Board, and the Board as a whole were evaluated at the meeting
of Independent Directors held on 9t February, 2024.

BOARD MEETINGS

During the year under review, the Board of Directors met 4 times respectively on 10t May, 2023, 4t
August, 2023, 10t November, 2023 and 9t February, 2024.

The intervening gap between any two meetings was within 120 days as prescribed by the Companies Act,
2013.
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Name of the | Designation Board Meeting Dates No. of

Directors To® 2t Ton o meetings
May, August, | November | February attended
2023 2023 ,2023 ,2024

Akhilesh Kumar | Vice-Chairman & v v v v 4

Singh Executive Director

MR. Managing Director v v v v 4

Shashibhushan

D.V.Ravi Non-executive Director v v v v 4

Umesh G. | Non-executive Director v v v v 4

Revankar

Jasmit Singh | Non-executive Director x 4 x v 2

Gujral

Dr. Saleem | Independent Director v v v v 4

K.Ali

Mohan Independent Director v v v v 4

Natarajan

v’ Present in the meeting
x  Availed leave of absence

DISCLOSURE OF COMPOSITION OF AUDIT COMMITTEE AND PROVIDING VIGIL
MECHANISM

Your Company has constituted an Audit Committee in terms of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013
read with 6 of Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014, wherein it has two
Independent Directors.

Mr. Mohan Natarajan and Dr. Saleem K.ali are the Independent Directors in the Audit Committee.

During the Financial Year 2023-24, the Committee met four times. The meetings of the Audit Committee
were also attended by other Directors, Chief Financial Officer, and Permanent Invitees as the special
invitees. The Company Secretary acts as Secretary of the Committee.

The provisions of Section 177(9) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Meetings of the Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 is not applicable to the Company.

REPORT ON PERFORMANCE
ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

AND FINANCIAL POSITION OF SUBSIDIARIES &

The Company has seven subsidiary companies as on 31st March 2024, namely (i) Shriram Asset
Management Company Ltd. (SAMCL), (ii) Shriram Insight Share Brokers Ltd. (SISBL), (iii) Shriram
Fortune Solutions Ltd. (SFSL), (iv) Shriram Wealth Ltd. (SWL), (v) SEA Funds Management India Pvt.
Ltd (SEA), (vi) NOVAC Digital Services Pvt. Ltd., (vii)) Way2Wealth Brokers Pvt. Ltd.(W2WB) and one
step-down subsidiary i.e. (viii) Way2Wealth Commodities Pvt. Ltd (W2WC), subsidiary of Way2Wealth
Brokers Pvt. Ltd.
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a.

Shriram Asset Management Company Limited - The Company during the year under review
posted total income of Rs.820.76 Lacs and a loss of Rs.685.92 Lacs as compared to the total
income of Rs. 583.61 Lacs and a loss of Rs. 403.08 Lacs during the preceding year.

Shriram Fortune Solutions Limited - The Company during the year under review posted a
total income of Rs.10436.67 Lacs and a Net profit after tax of Rs.185.25 Lacs as compared to
total income of Rs. 17516.23 Lacs and a Net profit after tax of Rs. 119.72 Lacs during the
preceding year.

Shriram Insight Share Brokers Limited - The Company during the year under review posted a
total income of Rs. 6931.86 Lacs and a Net Profit after Tax Rs. 1685.77 Lacs of as compared to
the total income of Rs. 5050.77 Lacs and a Net Profit after Tax of Rs. 379.28 Lacs during the
preceding year.

Shriram Wealth Limited [Previously known as Shriram Wealth Advisors Ltd.]- The
Company during the year under review posted total income of Rs.955.98 Lacs and a Net Profit
after tax of Rs.715.35 Lacs as compared to the total income of Rs. 965.29 Lacs and a loss of
Rs. 90.20 Lacs during the preceding year.

SEA Funds Management India Private Limited - The Company during the year under review,
posted a total income of Rs.138.80 Lacs and a Net profit after tax of Rs. 41.92 Lacs as compared
to the total income of Rs. 91.87 Lacs and a Net profit after tax of Rs. 25.23 Lacs during the
preceding year.

NOVAC Digital Services Pvt. Ltd - The Company during the year under review posted total
income of Rs. NIL Lacs and a loss of Rs..90 Lacs in FY 2023-24 as compared to the total
income of Rs. NIL Lacs and a loss of Rs. 1.51 Lacs during the preceding year.

Way2Wealth Brokers Pvt. Ltd - The Company during the year under review posted total
income of Rs. 8603.07 Lacs and a Net Profit after tax of Rs.45.36 Lacs as compared to the total
income of Rs. 6198.09 Lacs and loss of Rs. 681.49 Lacs during the preceding year.

Way2Wealth Commodities Pvt. Ltd - The Company during the year under review posted total
income of Rs.30.56 Lacs and loss of Rs. 10.30 Lacs as compared to the total income of
Rs. 22.03 Lacs and a loss of Rs. 36.38 Lacs during the preceding year.

The Company has prepared Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company as required under Section
129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, which forms part of this Annual Report. Further, a statement
containing the salient features of the Financial Statements of our subsidiaries in the prescribed Form
AOC-1 is attached to the Financial Statement of the Company.

In accordance with Section 136 of the Act, the Annual Report of Company, containing therein its
Standalone and Consolidated Financial Statements are available on the Company’s website at
www.shriramcredit.in
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SUBSIDIARIES / ASSOCIATE COMPANIES ACQUIRED/ CEASED / REVIVED DURING THE
YEAR

a. Subsidiaries/ associate companies acquired:

During the year under review, the Company had initially acquired 100% equity stake of NOVAC Digital
Services Pvt. Ltd. on 24% July, 2023. Subsequently, it has disposed-off 30% equity stake representing
30,000 equity shares to Mr. Desikachary Padmanabhan vide Share Purchase Agreement dated 1%
November, 2023.

b. Subsidiaries ceased during the year:

During the year under review, M/s Way2Wealth Securities Pvt. Ltd., a subsidiary of Shriram Credit
Company Ltd. has been merged with wholly owned subsidiary, M/s Way2Wealth Brokers Pvt. Ltd. w.e.f
15t April, 2023.

DEPOSITS

As your Company is a Non-Deposit Taking Systemically Important NBFC (NDSI), it has not accepted
any deposits during the year under review. The Board of Directors have passed a Circular Resolution
dated 13t April, 2024 confirming that neither the Company has accepted deposits during the preceding

financial year nor it would not accept deposits for FY 2023-24 as well.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS

Particulars of loans, guarantees and investments covered under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013
form part of the notes to the Standalone Financial Statements forming a part of this Annual Report.

Pursuant to Section 186 (11) of the Companies Act, 2013 loans or investments made, guarantee given or
security provided by a Non-Banking Finance Company in the ordinary course of its business are
exempted from disclosure in the Annual Report.

DETAILS IN RESPECT OF ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS WITH
REFERENCE TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In any industry, the processes and internal control systems play a critical role in the health of the
Company. The Company’s well-defined organisational structure, documented policy guidelines, defined
authority matrix and internal controls ensure efficiency of operations, compliance with internal policies
and applicable laws and regulations as well as protection of resources. Moreover, the Company
continuously upgrades these systems in line with the best available practices. The internal control system
is supplemented by regular reviews by management and standard policies and guidelines to ensure
reliability of financial and all other records to prepare Financial Statements and other data. The Audit
Committee of the Board reviews with management. The Audit Committee also monitors the implemented
suggestions given by management.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Your Company has historically adopted the practice of undertaking Related Party Transactions only in
the ordinary and normal course of business and at arm’s length as part of its philosophy of adhering to
highest ethical standards, transparency and accountability. In line with the provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013, the Board has approved a policy on related party transactions.

All Related Party Transactions are placed on a quarterly basis before the Audit Committee and before the
Board for approval.

None of the Related Party Transactions entered into by the Company were in conflict with the
Company’s interest. There are no materially significant Related Party Transactions made by the
Company with Promoters, Directors or Key Managerial Personnel etc. which may have potential conflict
with the interest of the Company at large.

The particulars of contracts or arrangements with related parties in Form AOC -2 are annexed herewith
as “Annexure A.”

AUDITORS
M/s K.S.Aiyar & Co., Chartered Accountants [Firm Regn. No: 100186W] were re-appointed by the
Board of Directors as the Statutory Auditors for a second term of five years at the 42°d Annual General

Meeting held on 26th July, 2022 until the conclusion of the 47" Annual General Meeting of the
Company, to be held in the year 2027.

M/s K.S.Aiyar & Co., Chartered Accountants, being eligible, continue to act as the Statutory Auditors of
the Company for the Financial Year 2023-24.

QUALIFICATIONS IN THE STATUTORY/ SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORTS

Your Board has pleasure in confirming that no disqualifications, reservations or adverse remarks made by
M/s K.S.Aiyar & Co., Chartered Accountants [Firm Regn. No: 100186W], Statutory Auditors in their
audit report issued to the Members of the Company for the Financial Statements for the Financial Year
ended 315t March, 2024.

The provisions relating to submission of Secretarial Audit Report is not applicable to the Company.

FRAUDS REPORTED BY AUDITORS AS PER SEC 143 (12) OTHER THAN THOSE WHICH
ARE REPORTABLE TO THE CENTRAL GOVERNMENT

There were no frauds reported by auditors in their report.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Members may kindly note that presently, the Company is not falling under the criteria prescribed under
Section 135(1) of the Companies Act, 2013; hence the provisions of Section 135(2) to Section 135(5) of
the Companies Act, 2013 cease to apply to the Company.

10
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RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

Risk Management is an ongoing process. The risk management includes identifying types of risks and its
assessment, risk handling and monitoring and reporting. The Company has in place a Risk Management
Policy, commensurate with its size of operations, which lays down a process for identification and
mitigation of risks that could materially impact its performance. The policy is available on the
Company’s website and be accessed at www.shriramcredit.in

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

Information required pursuant to Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is provided as
“Annexure B” to this report.

DISCLOSURES ON “CORPORATE GOVERNANCE”

All elements of remuneration package such as salary, benefits, bonuses, stock options, pension, etc. of the
Managerial Personnel:

Particulars of Remuneration of Mr. M.R.Shashibhushan Amount for FY 2023-24 (in lakhs)
Gross Salary 151.06

Perquisites 1.96

Leave Encashment paid in FY 2023-24 -

Contribution to NPS 7.51

Total 160.53

Shares held by him -

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE
ouTGO

The Company has no activity relating to Conservation of Energy & Technology Absorption. There was
no foreign exchange inflow or outflow during the year under review.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

Pursuant to Section 134(3)(a) and Section 92(3)of the Act read with Rule 12(1) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, an Annual Return of the Company for F.Y 2020 can be
accessed at the website of the Company at www.shriramcredit.in

The e-form MGT-7 shall be filed with the MCA upon the completion of the 44" Annual General Meeting
of the Company as required under Section 92 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made there-
under and a copy of the same shall be furnished on the website of the Company to ensure compliance
with the Companies (Amendment) Act, 2017, effective from 28th August, 2020.

11
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SIGNIFICANT & MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS

During the year, no significant /material orders were passed by regulators or courts or tribunals against
the Company, impacting the going concern status and company’s operations in future.

DISCLOSURES UNDER SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION & REDRESSAL), ACT 2013

The Company has in place an Anti-Sexual Harassment Policy in line with the requirements of the Sexual
Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. Internal
Complaints Committee has been set up to redress complaints received regarding sexual harassment. All
employees (permanent, contractual, temporary, trainees) are covered under this policy.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 22 of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013, the complaints received thereunder and the details relating thereto
are as follows:

(a) Number of complaints received in the year: Nil

(b) Number of complaints disposed of during the year: Nil

(c) Number of cases pending more than ninety days: Nil

(d) Nature of action taken by the employer or district officer: Nil

It may be mentioned here that the Company has zero tolerance towards any action on the part of any
executive / staff which may fall under the ambit of ‘Sexual Harassment’ at workplace, and is fully
committed to upholding and maintaining the dignity of every women executive / staff working in the
Company.

EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION SCHEME (ESOP)

Disclosure regarding Employee Stock Option Scheme (ESOP) is not applicable to the Company as the
Company has no ESOP scheme.

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE OF SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

Your Board of Directors state that applicable Secretarial Standards, i.e., SS-1 and SS-2, relating to
‘Meetings of the Board of Directors’ and ‘General Meetings’, respectively, have been duly followed by
the Company.

DETAILS OF APPLICATION MADE OR ANY PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER THE
INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016 (31 OF 2016)

During the year under review, there was no application made or any proceeding pending under the
Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (31 of 2016).
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DETAILS OF DIFFERENCE BETWEEN AMOUNT OF THE VALUATION DONE AT THE
TIME OF ONE TIME SETTLEMENT AND THE VALUATION DONE WHILE TAKING LOAN
FROM THE BANKS OR FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

No loans were availed from any bank or financial institution during the year under review and
accordingly no details are required to be disclosed.

HUMAN RESOURCES

Our professionals are our most important assets. We are committed to hiring and retaining the best talent
and being among the industry’s leading employers. For this, we focus on promoting a collaborative,
transparent and participative organization culture, and rewarding individual contribution and innovation.
The focus of our human resources management is to enable our employees to navigate their next, not just
for clients, but also for themselves.

As we look back, we would like to thank all employees for their support and commitment throughout the
year.

REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER AGENT — SHARE REGISTRY RELATED SERVICES

The share related registry operations have been delegated to our Registrar and Share Transfer Agent M/s.
Shriram Insight Share Brokers Ltd., Kolkata (HO).

Address for correspondence:
Shriram Insight Share Brokers Ltd.
CK 5, Sector 11, Salt Lake City, Kolkata- 700091

Shareholders Grievance/ queries can be sent through email to any of the following designated email ids
isbcal@hotmail.com

Shareholders can also send their correspondence to the Company with respect to their shares, request for
annual reports and other shareholder grievances. The contact details are provided below:

Ms. Trina Nandi

Company Secretary

Shriram Credit Company Ltd.

CK 5, Sector 11, Salt Lake City, Kolkata- 700091
Phone: 9830368162

Email: cs_sccl@shriram.com

13



mailto:isbcal@hotmail.com
mailto:cs_sccl@shriram.com

SHRIRAM

Credit Shriram Credit Company Ltd.
Regd. Office: Shriram House, No.4, Burkit Road

T.Nagar, Chennai- 600 017

CIN: U65993TN1980PLC008215

BOARD’S REPORT | 2024

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Your Directors place on record their sincere thanks to bankers, business associates, consultants, and
various Government Authorities for their continued support extended to your Companies activities during
the year under review. Your Directors also acknowledges gratefully the shareholders for their support and
confidence reposed on your Company.

For and on behalf of the Board
SHRIRAM CREDIT COMPANY LTD.

Sd/- Sd/-

Akhilesh Kumar Singh M.R.Shashibhushan
Vice Chairman Managing Director
DIN: 00421577 DIN: 00492377

Date: May 24, 2024
Place: Chennai
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FORM NO. AOC-2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the Company with related parties
referred to in sub-section (1) of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms length
transactions under third proviso thereto

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis:

There were no contracts or arrangements or transactions entered into during the year ended March 31, 2024,
which were not at arm’s length basis.

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis:

The details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at arm’s length basis for the year ended March 31,

2024 are as follows:
Name of the Party | Nature of | Duration of | Salient Terms Amount (in lakhs)
Relationship Contract

Shriram Value Fellow subsidiary | 15/05/2019 to | Royalty Expenses 31.74
Services Ltd. Company 30/09/2024 (artistic work on

labels, letterhead,

commercial

literature, use of

Intellectual

Property)
Shriram Insight Subsidiary Company | Continuing  till | DP Charges 0.03
Share Brokers Ltd. date
Shriram Insight Subsidiary Company | Till 31.03.2024 Interest Expenses 9.74
Share Brokers Ltd.
Shriram Insight Subsidiary Company | Till 31.03.2024 Interest Income 37.69
Share Brokers Ltd.
Way2Wealth Subsidiary Company | Open ended Reimbursement of .08
Brokers Private Expenses
Limited
Way2Wealth Subsidiary Company | Continuing  till | Interest Expenses 17.02
Brokers Private date
Limited

15




SHRIRAM

Credit Shriram Credit Company Ltd.
Regd. Office: Shriram House, No.4, Burkit Road

T.Nagar, Chennai- 600 017

CIN: U65993TN1980PLC008215

Way2Wealth Subsidiary Company | 04.08.2023- Interest Income 73.42
Brokers Private continuing  till
Limited date.
Way2Wealth Subsidiary Company | Open ended Financial 0.29
Brokers Private Consultancy Fees
Limited Income
Way2Wealth Step-down subsidiary | Open ended Reimbursement of 5.75
Commodities Expenses
Private Limited
Way2Wealth Promoter Group Open ended Reimbursement of 0.06
Insurance Brokers Expenses
Private Limited
Shriram Finance Promoter Group 01.11.2024 to | Rent payment for 11.66
Limited 31.10.2026 the use of
Infrastructure

Shriram Finance Promoter Group Mandates dated | Financial 60.48
Limited 8t May, 2023 & | Consultancy Fees

Ist December, | Income

2023.
Shriram Finance Promoter Group 01.09.2023 to | Income from 3064.89
Limited 31.03.2024 mobilization of

deposit

Shriram Wealth Subsidiary Company | Open ended Interest Income 0.72
Limited

Appropriate approvals have been taken from the Board of Directors of the Company from time to time for the related
party transactions as mentioned above.

Amount paid as advances, if any: NIL

For and on behalf of the Board
SHRIRAM CREDIT COMPANY LTD.

Sd/- Sd/-

Akhilesh Kumar Singh M.R.Shashibhushan
Vice Chairman Managing Director
DIN: 00421577 DIN: 00492377

Date: May 24, 2024
Place: Chennai
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Annexure ‘B’ to BOARD’S REPORT] 2024

DETAILS PERTAINING TO REMUNERATION

AS REQUIRED UNDER RULE S (2) OF THE

COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL)

RULES, 2014

Sr. PARTICULARS DETAILS
No.

1. | Name of the Employee M.R.Shashibhushan

2. Designation of the Employee Managing Director

3. | Nature of Employment, whether contractual | Contractual

or otherwise
4. Qualifications & Experience of the | He is a Bachelor of Commerce from Bangalore
Employee University. During his professional tenure, he has
completed the 'Professional Membership Programme'
of the Bangalore Stock Exchange, has undergone the
'Executive Education Programme' at IIM Bangalore
and the 'Corporate Leadership Program' at Orix
Corporation, Tokyo Japan.

5. Date of Commencement of the Employment | He was appointed as the Managing Director of the
Company on 20t January, 2021.

6. | Age 56 Years (01/07/1968)

7. Last employment He was the CEO of Way2Wealth Securities Pvt. Ltd.
and has played an important role in growing the
organization organically & also through meaningful
acquisitions, in the past thirteen years.

8. The percentage of equity shares held by the | NIL

employee in the Company within the
meaning of clause (iii) of sub rule (2) of
Rule 5

9. Whether any such employee is a relative of | None

any Director or manager of the Company
and if so, name of such director or manager.
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Annexure ‘B’ to BOARD’S REPORT] 2024

DETAILS OF REMUNERATION RECEIVED DURING THE YEAR NEEDS TO BE GIVEN

13:)' Particulars of Remuneration for FY 2023-24 Amount in lakhs
1. Gross salary

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of the Income-tax 151.06

Act, 1961

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) 1.96

Income-tax Act, 1961

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) Income-tax Act, 1961 -

(e) Leave Encashment paid in FY 2023-24 -
2. Contribution to NPS 7.51
TOTAL 160.53

Notes:

1. No employee was employed for a part of the FY 2023-24 drawing remuneration of more than
rupees eight lakh and fifty thousand per month.

2. No employee drawing remuneration in excess of that drawn by the Managing Director or Whole-
time Director or Manager and holding two percent of the equity shares of the Company by himself
or along with his spouse and dependent children was employed throughout the FY 2023-24 or part

thereof.
For and on behalf of the Board
SHRIRAM CREDIT COMPANY LTD.
Sd/- Sd/-
Akhilesh Kumar Singh M.R.Shashibhushan
Vice Chairman Managing Director
DIN: 00421577 DIN: 00492377

Date: May 24, 2024
Place: Chennai
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of Shriram Credit Company Limited

Report on the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone Ind AS financial statements of Shriram Credit
Company Limited (*the Company”) which comprises the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024,
the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), Statement of
Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flow for the year then ended, and notes to the
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information. '

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the Indian Accounting Standard prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read
with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended (Ind AS) and
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2024 and its profit, total comprehensive income, the changes in equity and its cash
flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section143(10) of the Companies Act,2013. Our
responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the standalone Ind AS financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on
the standalone financial statements.

Offices alsm at
Mumbai Chennai
Bengalur Coimbatore Hyderabad 1
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Emphasis of Matter

The Trial Balance of SCCL- Chennai Branch has been audited by other auditor, the Report of
which has been furnished to us by the Management, and our conclusion on the statement, in so
far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of SCCL-Chennai Branch, is
based solely on the report of the other auditor and procedures performed by us.

Information Other thanm the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report
Thereon

The other information comprises the information included in the Annual Report, but does not
include the consolidated financial statements, standalone financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other
information.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and
we do not express any form of assurance or conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to
read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained
during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and those charged with governance for the standalone
Ind AS financial statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in sectionl34(5) of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these standalone Ind
AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance, including other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the
Company in accordance with Division III of Schedule III of the Act as applicable to Non-
banking Financial Companics as defined in the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
(Amendment} Rules 2016 and the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read
with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
implementation and maintenance of accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that
are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone Ind
AS financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.
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In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to
do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting
processes.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of standalone Ind AS financial statement

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Standalone Ind AS
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
standalone Ind AS financial statements. '

A further description of the auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the standalone Ind AS
financial statements is included in Annexure A. This description forms part of our auditor’s
report,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order™), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms section 143(11) of the Companies Act, 2013, we
give in the Annexure B a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the
Order, to the extent applicable.

2.  A. Asrequired by Sectionl143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books

¢. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow
Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements comply with
the Indian Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act.

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the Directors as on 31

March, 2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on 31% March, 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164 (2) of the Act.
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f. With respect to the adequacy of the Internal Financial Control over financial
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer
to our separate Report in “Annexure C”.

B. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

a. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial
position in its standalone Ind AS financial statements.

b. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

¢. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

d. (1) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from
borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds)
by the Company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign
entity (“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of
the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(i) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, no funds have been received by the Company from any person or
entity, including foreign entity (“Funding Parties™), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behaif of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(iii) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has
caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii)
contain any material misstatement.

e. No dividend was declared or paid by the company during the year.

f. Based on our examination which included test checks, the company has used
accounting software for maintaining its books of account, which have a feature of
recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the
year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software.
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Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of the
audit trail feature being tampered with.

As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable
from April 1, 2023, reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 on preservation of audit trail as per the statutory
requirements for record retention is not applicable for the financial year ended
March 31, 2024.

C. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in
accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

For K.S.Aiyar & Co.

Membership No.: 050927

UDIN: 24050927BKFMFP7153

Place: Kolkata
Date: 24-05-2024
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Annexure A

Responsibilities for Audit of Standalone Ind AS Financial Statement

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone Ind AS financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks , and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the
Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating

effectiveness of such controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and , based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
standalone Ind AS financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained upto the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to
continueas a going concern,

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone Ind AS financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone Ind AS financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation,

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeble user of the standalone financial statements may be influenced. We consider
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and
in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evalaute the effect of any identiifed
misststements in the standalone financial statements.
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal contro] that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the standalone Ind AS financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

For K. S. Aiyar & Co.
Chartered Accountants
irmy Regn. No. 100186W

Membership No.: 050927

UDIN: 24050927BKFMFP7153

Place: Kolkata
Date; 24-05-2024
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Annexure - B

Referred to in Paragraph 8 under the heading ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ of our report of even date to the members of the Company for the year
ended March 31, 2024

To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the
Company and the books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit,
we state that:

i

ii.

i,

(a)

(b)

(c)
)

(@)
(b)

The Company has a program of verification of Property, Plant and Equipment so as to cover
all the assets in a phased manner which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size
of the Company and the nature of its assets. According to the information and explanations
given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

There is no immovable property (other than property where the company is the lessee and the
lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee) held in the name of the company
and hence reporting under clause 3 (i)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment during the year.

No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the Company as at
March 31, 2024 for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder.

The Company does not have any inventory and hence reporting under clause 3(ii)(a) of the
Order is not applicable.

The company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees, in
aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets and
hence reporting under clause 3 (ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

(a) The Company has not provided guarantee in respect of facilities availed from Bank by its

(b)

subsidiaries.

In our opinion, the investments made and the terms and conditions of the grant of guarantees
provided are prima facie, not prejudicial to the Company’s interest.

{c) The schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated and

(d)

(e)

repayments or receipts of principal amounts and interest have been regular as per
stipulations.

In respect of loans granted by the Company, there is no amount overdue for more than ninety
days as at the balance sheet date.

No loan granted by the Compény which has fallen due during the year, has been renewed or
extended or fresh loans granted to settle the overdues of existing loans given to the same
parties.

() The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans either repayable on

demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment.
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The Company has not given any loan to Directors during the year nor is the Company an
investment company. Hence, Sec. 185 & 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable to the
Company.

The Company has not accepted any deposit or amounts which are deemed to be deposits. Hence
reporting under clause 3 (v) of the Order is not applicable.

The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central Government under
subsection (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 for the business activities carried out by
the company. Hence reporting under clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable.

In respect of statutory dues:

(a) The company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Services
Tax, provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of
customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other statutory dues to the appropriate
authorities.

{(b)Details of statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) above which have not been deposited as
on March 31, 2024 on account of disputes are given below:

Nature of the Nature of | Forum where dispute Period to Amount
dues is pendin hich the
statute P & W (Rs.)
amount
relates
Income Tax Act, Income Tax ITAT AY 2014-15 1,03,78,860
1961 Demand
Income Tax Act, Income Tax CIT (Appeal) AY 2018-19 8,25,620
1961 Demand
Income Tax Act, Income Tax Jurisdiction Assessing AY 2020-21 7,67,190
1961 Demand Officer
Income Tax Act, Income Tax Jurisdiction Assessing AY 2021-22 11,230
1961 Demand Officer
GST FY 17-18 14,61,187
Demand (July 17 to March
.. 18)
I
ST Act. 2017 GST ’épp" ]?‘{e,Add't‘g;a' FY 1819 24.87,079
et Demand -omfmsszc‘mer( ). (April 18 to
Tirupati, A.P. March 19)
GST FY 18-20 13,36,800
Demand (April 19 to
October 19)
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viil. There were no transactions relating to previously- unrecorded income that have been surrendered or
disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of
1961).

iX. (a) The Company has not taken any loans or other borrowings from any lender. Hence reporting
under clause 3(ix)(a) of the Order is not applicable.
(b) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or othe

lender,

(¢} The Company has not taken any term loan during the year and there are no outstanding term
loans at the beginning of the year and hence reporting under clause 3(ix){(c¢) of the Order is
not applicable.

(d) The Company has not raised any funds and hence reporting under clause 3(ix)}(d) of the Order
is not applicable.

(e} The Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the
obligations of its subsidiaries.

(f) The Company has not raised any loans during the year and hence reporting under clause
3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable.

X.  (a) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the
Order 1s not applicable.
(b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or
convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally) during the year and hence reporting
under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

xi. (a) No fraud by the company or any fraud on the company has been noticed or reported during
the year.
(b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed by th
auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules
2014 with the Central Government during the year and upto the date of this report.

(¢} The Company does not have a whistle blower policy and hence reporting under clause
3(xi){c) of the Order is not applicable. :

Xii. The Company is not Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not
applicable.

Xiil. In our opinion, the Company is in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013
with respect to applicable transactions with the related parties and the details of related party
transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable
accounting standards.

XIV. (a) In our opinion, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and
nature of its business.
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XV.  In our opinion during the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with
its Directors or persons connected to its directors and hence provisions of section 192 of the
Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

XVi. (a) The Company is registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of
1934)

(b) The company has conducted Non-Banking Financial activities with a valid Certificat
of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of India Act
1934

(¢} The company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by
the Reserve Bank of India and hence reporting under clause 3(xvi)}(c) of the Order is not .
applicable,

(d) The Group has no CIC as part of the Group and hence reporting under clause 3(xvi)(d) of the
Order is not applicable, :

xvil. The company has not incurred cash losses in this financial year and in the immediately preceding
financial year.

xviii. There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year.

XIX. On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets
and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements
and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our
examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention,
which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report
indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its labilities existing at the date of balance
sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date.

XX. The conditions of Sec. 135(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable to the Company and
hence reporting under clause 3(xx) of the Order is not applicable.

For K.S.Aiyar & Co.
artered Accountants
Regn. No. 100186W

Membership No.: 050927

UDIN: 24050927BKFMFP7153

Place; Kolkata
Date: 24-05-2024
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Annexure — C

Referred to in Paragraph 8 (f) under the heading ‘Report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements’ of our report of even date to the members of the Company
for the year ended March 31, 2024

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Shriram Credit
Company Limited (“the Company™) as of March 31, 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence
fo company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds
and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note™) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an
audit of internal financial controls, issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controis
operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial control system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness.
Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
Judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial
reporting.

12
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles.

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial conirols over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

or K.S.Aiyar & Co.
artered Accountants
Regn. No. 100186W

Membership No.: 050927

UDIN: 24050927BKFMFP7153

Place; Kolkata
Date:ﬂ24-05-2024
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Shriram Credit Company Limited

Report on the audit of the Consolidated IndAS Financial Statements

1. Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated IndAs financial statements of Shriram
Credit Company Limited (hereinafter referred to as the ‘Holding Company™) and its
subsidiaries (Holding Company and its 'subsidiaries together referred to as“the Group™),
its associates and jointly controlled entities, which comprisc the consolidated Balance
Sheet as at March 31, 2024, the consolidated statement of Profit and Loss (including
other comprehensive income), the consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and notes
to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies (hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated IndAs financial statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, the aforesaid consolidated IndAS financial statements give the information required
by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
IndAS and accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of
affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024, of consolidated profit/loss, consolidated
total comprehensive income and consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended.

2. Basis for OQpinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified
under section 143(10) of the Companies act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by ICAIL and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Offices alser at
Mumbai Chennai
Bengaluru Coimbatore Hyderabad 4
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3. Emphasis of Matter

(a) Note 39A: M/s Way to Wealth Securities Private Limited (“Transferor Company”)
was amalgamated with M/s Way 2 Wealth- Brokers Private Limited (“Transferce
Company™) with effect from lst April, 2023 vide order of the Regional Director,
South East Region, Hyderabad, dated 18th July, 2023. Accordingly, M/s Way 2
Wealth Brokers Private Limited has become the direct subsidiary of Shriram Credit
Company Limited.

(b) Note 39B: Shriram Credit Co. Ltd. (SCCL) had acquired the entire equity stake of
NOVAC Digital Services Pvt. Ltd. (NDSPL) from NOVAC Technology Solutions
Pvt. Ltd (NTSPL) in July 2023. Subsequently in November 2023, SCCL had sold
off its 30% equity stake to Mr. D. Padmanabhan. As on 31st March, 2024, SCCL
held 69.99% equity shares in NDSPL.

4. Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’s
Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other
information. The other information comprises the information included in the
Management Discussion and Analysis, Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s
Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder’s
Information, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon. Qur opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance or conclusion thereon. In
connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility s to
read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information; we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

5. Responsibilities of Management and those charged with governance for the
consolidated financial statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and
presentation of these consolidated Ind AS financial statements in term of the
requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 that give a true and fair view of the
consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance including its
Associates and Jointly controlled entities in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards specified under
section 133 of the Act read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2013,
as amended. The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group
and of its associates and jointly controlled entities are responsible for maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
“Nafeguarding the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
iregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
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judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively
for ensuring accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements that give a
true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated Ind AS
financial statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, the respective Board of
Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its associates and jointly
controlled entities are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group and of its
associates and jointly controlled entities to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its
associates and jointly controlled entities are responsible for overseeing the financial
reporting process of the Group and of its associates and jointly controlled entities.

6. Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated Ind AS

financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud .
or etror, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance

is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance

with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can

arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,

they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on

the basis of these consolidated Ind AS financial statements.

A further description of the auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated Ind
AS financial statements is included in Annexure A. This description forms part of our
auditor’s report.

7. OtherMatters

We did not audit the financial statements of subsidiaries, whose financial statements
reflect total assets of Rs. 70,812.53 lacs, total income of Rs. 27,887.14 lacs and net profit
after tax of Rs.1,986.83 lacs as at 31* March, 2024. These financial statements have been
audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us by the Management
and our opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, in so0 far as it relates to
the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries and our report in
terms of Section 143 (3) of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries, is
based solely on the reports of the other auditors.
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(Rs. In Lacs)
Sr. Name of the Subsidiary Group’s Group’s Group’s Name of the Auditor
No. Companies share of share of share of
total total net profit
assets income
1. | Shriram Asset Management 8011.76 820.76 -685.92 | G.D. Apte & Co.
Company Limited
2. | Shriram Wealth Limited 656.45 955.98 715.35 | Pijush Gupta & Co.
3. | Shriram Fortune Solutions 5949.99 10436.67 185.25 | Pijush Gupta & Co.
Limited
4. | Way 2 Wealth Brokers Private 25044.67 8603.07 45.36 | Pijush Gupta & Co.
Limited
5. | Shriram Insight Share Brokers 30362.77 6931.86 1685.77 | KGRS & Co.
Limited
6. | Sea Funds Management India 401.39 138.80 41.92 [ N J Suresh & Associates
Private Limited _
7. | Novac Digital Services Private 385.50 0 -0.90 | Sundar Srini & Sridhar
Ltd.
TOTAL 70812.53. 27887.14 1986.83

Our opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, and our report on Other Legal
and Regulatory Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with
respect to our reliance on the work done and the reports of the other auditors and the
financial statements certified by the Management.

8. Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

A. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid
consolidated Ind AS financial statements.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of
the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial statements have been kept so far as it
appears from our examination of those books and the reports of the other auditors.

¢. The Consolidated Balance Sheet and the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss
dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account
maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial statements comply with the
Indian Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act read with
Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015, as amended.

X AR ; c? \3 On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding
* Company as on 31% March, 2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the
*r Holding Company and the reports of the statutory auditors of its subsidiary companies,
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associate companies and jointly controlled companies incorporated in India, none of
the directors of the Group companies, its associate companies and jointly controlled
companies incorporated in India is disqualified as on 31 st March, 2024 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section164(2) of theAct.

f. With respect to the adequacy of internal financial controls over financial reporting of
the Group and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report
in Annexure B.

B. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditor’s) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

a. The consolidated Ind AS financial statements disclose the impact of pending
litigations on the consolidated financial position of the Group, its associates and
jointly controlled entities.

b. The Group, its associates and jointly controlled entities did not have any material
foreseeable losses on long-term contracts including derivative contracts.

c. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Holding Company, and its subsidiary
companies, associate companies and jointly controlled companies incorporated in
India.

d. (i) The Management of the Holding Company has represented that, to the best of its
knowledge and belief, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested
(either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of
funds) by the Holding Company or any of its subsidiary companies to or in any
other person or entity, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries”), with the
understanding, whetherrecorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary
shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Holding Company or
any of its subsidiary companies (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(ii) The Management of the Holding Company has represented, that, to the best of its
knowledge and belief, no funds have been received by the Holding Company or
any of its subsidiary companies from any person or entity, including foreign
entity (“Funding Parties™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing
or otherwise, that the Holding Company or any of its subsidiary companies
shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(iii) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused
us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i} and (ii) contain any
material misstatement,
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f Based on our examination which included test checks, and as communicated by the
respective auditor of subsidiaries, the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies
have used accounting softwares for maintaining its books of account, which have a
feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout
the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the respective softwares. Further,
during the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of the audit trail
feature being tampered with.

C. With respect to the matters specified in paragraphs 3(xxi) and 4 of the Companies
(Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (the “Order’/ “CARO”) issued by the Central
Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, to be included in the Auditor’s
report, according to the information and explanations given to us, and based on the
CARO reports issued by us for the Company and its subsidiaries included in the
consolidated financial statements of the Company, to which reporting under CARO is
applicable, we report that there are no qualifications or adverse remarks in these CARO
reports.

For K.S.Aiyar & Co.

Chartered Accountants
Firin Regn. No. 100186W

|

Membership No.: 050927

UDIN: 24050927BKFMFQ4162

Place: Kolkata
Date: 24-05-2024
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Annexure A

Responsibilities for Audit of Consolidated Ind AS.Financial Statement

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

*» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements,

Whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Undersection 143(3)(1) of the
Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
company has adequate internal financial controls system inplace and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the
Group and its associates and jointly controlled entities to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modif your opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group and its associates and jointly controlled entities to cease
to continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events in @ manner that achieves fair
presentation.

« Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
entities or business activities within the Group and its associates and jointly controlled
entities to express an opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the financial
statements of such entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which we
are the independent auditors. For the other entities included in the consolidated Ind AS
financial statements, which have been audited by other auditors, such other auditors remain
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responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried out by
them. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the consolidated financial statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeble user of the consolidated financial statements may be influenced. We consider
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and
in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evalaute the effect of any identiifed
misststements in the consolidated financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such
other entities included in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements of which we are the
independent auditors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards. From the matters communicated with those charged
with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated Ind AS financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

For K.S.Aiyar & Co.

artered Accountants
ifm Regn. No. 100186W

Membership No.: 050927

UDIN: 24050927BKFMFQ4162

Place: Kolkata
Date; 24-05-2024
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ANNEXURE B

Independent Auditor’s Report (Referred to Paragraph 8A (f) of even date on the
Consolidated Financial Statements of Shriram Credit Company Limited

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of Shriram Credit
Company Limited as of and for the year ended March 31, 2024, we have audited the internal
financial controls over financial reporting of Shriram Credit Company Limited (hereinafter
referred to as the “Holding Company™) and its subsidiary Companies, which are Companies
incorporated in India, as of that date.

Management’s Responstbility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company, its subsidiary Companies, which are
Companies incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Holding Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
the respective Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™)
and the Standards on Auditing, both, issued by Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, and
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and
if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Qur
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding
of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
Or ETTOoT,

P
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the
other auditors in terms of their reports referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below, is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting of the Holding Company & subsidiary companies
incorporated in India.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles.

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with
authorizations of management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial repotting to future periods are subject
to the risk that the intemnal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

. Opinion

In our opinion and based on consideration of the audit reports of the other auditors, the Holding
Company, its subsidiary Companies, which are Companies incorporated in India, have,
maintained in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively
as at March 31, 2024, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Holding Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

10
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Other Matters

Our aforesaid report under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Holding Company,
in so far as it relates to the subsidiary companies, which are companies incorporated in India, is
based on the corresponding reports of the auditors of such subsidiary companies incorporated in
India. It is to be mentioned that in respect of Way2Wealth Brokers (P) Ltd., improved control
measures need to be exercised for claims from investors pending before various legal fora.

We also have audited, in accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India as specified under section 143(10) of the Act, the consolidated
financial statements of the Holding Company, which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet
as at March 31, 2024 and the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, and our
report expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

For K.S.Aiyar & Co.

Chartered Accountants
Fi'm Regn. No. 100186W

e

S.Ghosh
artner
Membership No.: 050927

UDIN: 24050927BKFMFQ4162

Place: Kolkata
Date: 24-05-2024
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SHRIRAM CREDIT COMPANY LIMITED

Reg office: Shriram House, No.4 Burkit Road, T Nagar Chennai 600 017

CIN : U65993TN1980PLC008215
Consolidated Balance Sheet as on 31 March 2024

Rs. in Lakhs
Note As at As at
Pieicalivi . No. March 31,2024 March 31,2023
Audited Audited
1 ASSETS
1 Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 4 3,011.40 4,930.93
Bank balances other than above 5 2544572 12,726.39
Receivables
(i) Trade receivables 6 5,368.95 4,797.30
(ii) Other Receivables 6 1,850.62 2,845.40
Loans 7 12,892.27 3,886.06
Investments 8 8,860.29 12,613.10
Other Financial Assets 9 5,088.15 4,959.07
Total Financial Assets 62,517.40 46,758.25
2 Non Financial Assets
Inventory 2434 13.28
Current Tax Assets (Net) 3,996.13 2,684.46
Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 10 1,775.07 1,319.46
Investment Property 11 1086 11.81
Property, Plant and Equipment 12 2,440.68 2,349.16
Capital Work in Progress 12 12,98 7.08
Other Intangible Assets 13 177.47 170.24
Intangible Assets under development 13 34730 45.00
Right of Use Asset 12 225344 1,924.44
Other Non-Financial Assets 14 1,405.80 731.29
Total Non Financial Assets 12,444.07 9,256.22
Total Assets 74,961.47 56,014.47
n LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Liabilities
1. Financial Liabilities
Trade payables
i)Total outstanding dues of micro 1.00 -
enterprises and small enterprises
ii)Total outstanding dues of creditors 15 19.852.29 12,015.40
other than micro enterpnses and small
Borrowings 16 5,571.73 668.32
Subordinated Liability 212 2,400.00 2,400.00
Deposits = -
Lease Liability 17 252315 2,125.49
Other Financial Liabilities 18 5,105.47 3,678.31
Total Financial Liabilities 35453.64 20,887.52
1. Non Financial Liabilities
Provisions 19 1,637.49 1,523.01
Current Tax Liabilities - -
Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) - -
Other Non-Financial Liabilities 20 1,254.45 1,271.40
Total Non Financial Liabilities 2,891.94 2,794.41
3. Equity
Equity Share capital 211 2,406.31 2,406.31
Other Equity 22 31,204.24 27,376.75
Non Controlling Interest 3,00534 2,549.48
Total Equity 36,615.89 32,332.54
Total Liabilities and Equity 74,961.47 56,014.47

lidated financial stat

See accompaning notes forming part of the

The notes are as certified by the management.

Membership No. 050927

UDIN © 2405092 TBKFMFR 4162

Place: Kolkata
Date; 24-05-2024

q

For

Shriram Credit Company

™~

Akhilesh Kumar Singl
Vice Chairman
DIN : 00421577

d on behalf of the Board of Directors of

ted

M R Shashil
Managing Director

IN : 0049237
Trina Nandi
Company Secretary

Place:Chennat
Date:24-05-2024



SHRIRAM CREDIT COMPANY LIMITED
Reg office: Shriram House, No.4 Burkit Road, T Nagar Chennai 600 017
CIN : U65993TN1980PLC008215
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the period ended 31 March 2024

Rs. in Lakhs
. Note No. Year ended Year ended
Pt . March 31,2024 Mareh 31,2023
Revenue from operations
(i)  Interestincome 23 3,580.78 2,093.51
(i)  Dividend income 24 322 369
(m)  Rental income 4437 2479
(iv)  Fee and commission income 25 22,251.26 26,681.92
(v)  Net gain on fair value changes 26 938.44 172.33
(vi)  Sale of services, Software products & Licenses 3,400.55 6,026.48
1 Total Revenue from operations 30,218.62 35,002.72
u Other Income 27 36403 34954
Ml Total Income (I+IT) 30,582.65 35,352.26
Expenses
(i)  Finance costs 28 589.27 791.93
(i) Fees and Commission Expenses 11,092.03 17,574 46
(i)  Employee benefits expense 29 10,181.71 11,328.08
(1v)  Depreciation and izati p 1,074.11 1,007.65
(vi)  Other expenses 30 4,823.65 5,537.95
v) Provisions and Write offs 3 19.28 15.36
w Total expenses (IV) 27,780.05 36,255.43
v Profit / (Loss) before tax (II-IV) 2,802.60 (903.17
VI Tax expense:
(1) Current tax 875.21 35593
(2) Current tax - For earlier years (0.60) 78.95
(3) Deferred Tax (411.09) (413.77)
Total Tax Expense 463.52 21.11
VII  Profit/ (Loss) after Tax (V-VT) 2,339.08 (924.28
ADD: Share of profit of Associates & -
VIl Profit/ (Loss) for the year ' 2,339.08 (924.28]
X Other Comprehensive Income
A (1) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 85.50 24.12
(i1) Income tax relating to item that will not be reclassified to profit or loss (41.87) (6.14
Total A 43.63 17.98
B (i) Items that will reclassified to profit or loss -
(ii) Income tax relating to item that will be reclassified to profit or loss - -
Total B - -
Total Other Comprehensive Income/(loss) (A+B) 43.63 17.98
X Total Comprehensive Income 2,382.71 (906.30)]
XI Total Profit for the year attributable to:
- Owners of the Company 2,588.18 (799.28)
- Non-controlling interest (249.10) (125.00)
_2,339.08 (924.28)]
XII  Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year attributable to:
- Owners of the Company 41.14 19.29
- Non-controlling interest 249 (1.31)
43.63 17.98
XIII  Total comprehensive income for the year attributable to:
- Owners of the Company 2,629.31 (779.99)
- Non-controlling interest (246.60) (126.31)
2,382.71 (906.30)

# The notes are as certified by the management.

our report of even date

For and on behalf of the Board of Direct
Shriram Credit Company Limil

K

Akhilesh Kumar Sing M R Shashibhushan
Viee Chairman Managing Director
DIN . 00421577 DIN : 00492377

Ty Nawdk

Company Secretary
Place: Chennai

Date:24-05-2024

Place: Kolkata
Date: 24-05-2024




SHRIRAM CREDIT COMPANY LIMITED
Reg office: Shriram House, No.4 Burkit Road, T Nagar Chennai 600 017
CIN : U63993TN1980PLC008215

Consoliduted Cash flow

for the period ended 31 March 2024

Rs. in Lakhs
As at Asat
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31,2023

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Profit before tax 2,802.60 (903.17)
Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans 6.75 (3.59)
Interest on Lease Liability
Adjustments for:
Provision for CSR expenditurcs 10.32 11.86
Provision for Bad & Doubtful debts 11.26 N
Provision for Gratuity and Leave encashment 19.05 (117.69)
Interest on Lease Liability 336 s3.64
Interest income (1,682.78) (352.85)
Dividend Received (3.22) (3.69)
Dep and p: 1,073.94 1.007 65
Finance costs 678.37 52230
Profit on sale of investments
Net gain on fair value changes (896.01) (284.41)
(Profit) / Loss on disposal of property, plant & equipment 558 0.61
Provision & Write offs 16.82 (3.79
Employee Stock Option Exp - -
Unrealized Profit on MF -
Interest expense
Interest Paid
Income on fair valuation of investments
ESOP Expenses 12130 16.61
Other Non Cash Income
(Gain)/ Loss on sale of fixed assots
(Gain)/ Loss on sale of assct
Other Comprehensive Income (5.26) 0.07
(Gain) / Loss on Right of Use Asset - (17.53)
Interest income on Bank Deposits and Debentures =
Tax Exp -
Operating profit before changes in working capital 2,242.07 (68.97)|
Adjustments for:
Decrease/ (Increase) in trade receivables
Decrease / (Increase) in Loans (1.695.86) 956.25
Decrease / (Increase) in Other financial asscts (8.949.51) (3,793.75)
Decrease / (Increase) in Security Deposit
(h / Decrease in | u (11.06) (0.03)
(Increasc)/Decrease in Trade and Other Receivables 617.46 2,921 82
Increase/(Decreasc) in Deposits
( Increase ) / Decrease in Non Financial Asscts 26.87 3,045.55
Increase / (Decrease) in Provisions 14.01 97.18
Increase / (Decrease) in Investment - (29.31)
Increase / (Decreasc) in Other Financial Liabilities 1,533.28 1.413.40
Increase / (Decrease) in Trade Payables 7,714.62 (6,121.70)
Increase / (Decrease) in Other Non Financial Liabilitics 891.52 (3,020.28)
Changes in Reserves due to Other Comprehensive Income
Cash generated from Operations 2,383.39 (4,599.84)|
Direct Taxes paid (1,808.57), (1,123.33)
Net Cash flow from/(used in) operating activities ( A) 574.82 (5,723.67)
B. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Property, Plant & Equipment and Intangibles (876.27) (303.52)
Sale of Intangiblc asscts under development “ a
Procecds from sale of Property, Plant & Equipment and Intangibles 45.70 1,688 84
Loans recovered 1,444.07301 (1,476.28)
Investment in fixed deposits (5,504.40) .
Interest income
Purchase of investments (84.50) (3,118.46)
Fixed assets -Sold
Sale of investments
Dividend received




SHRIRAM CREDIT COMPANY LIMITED
Reg office: Shriram House, No.4 Burkit Road, T Nagar Chennai 600 017
CIN : U65993TN1980PLC008215

Consolidated Cash flow statement for the period ended 31 March 2024

Rs. in Lakhs
Asat As at
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
Proceeds from Investment/ Closure of Bank Deposits
Proceeds from Sale of Investments 6,147.49 2,399.40
Purchase of intangible asscls
‘Redemption of investment -RNCPS
Repayment of Share Application Moncy Pending Allotment - (321
Sale of fixed asscts
Fixed assets sold- Loss on Sale
Rent, Intcrest and dividend received 1,649.02 406.00
Interest income & Dividend income
Net Cash flow from/(used in) investing activities (B ) 2,824.33 (403.53)
C. CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Loan (given) / received (1.123.11) (3.890.47)
Payment of lcase liabilitics (585.53) (412.77)
Right of Use Assct (927.02) (95.10),
Repayment of lease liabilitics
Interest on Lease Liability (83.36) (58.64)
Interest paid (676.70) (378.00)
Proceed on Issuc of Equity Share Capital 968.29 413.19
1ssuc of CCPS - 5,000.00
Issuc of CCD's = 1,880.00
Issuc of warrants - 460.49
Finance cost
Proceeds from/ (ropayment of) long term and short term borrowings (214.48) 1,934.22
Redemption of NCCRPS (400.00) (5,000.00)
Unsecured borrowings (net) (2,276.77) 650.00
Net cash flow from/(used in) financing activities ( C) (5,318.68) 502.93
Movement in FCTR (D) - %
E. Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash & Cash equivalents (A+B+C+D) (1,919.53) (5,624.27)
Bank bal, ferred on of Merger * - .
Cash & Cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 4,930.93 10,555.20
Cash & Cash equivalents at the end of the year 3,011.40 4,930.93
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 M 31,2023

Cash on hand 10.72 1048
Balances with banks :

In current account 2,800.47 3,719.73

In i - 3 mo 200.21 1,200.72 |
[Total 301140 493093 |

irm Regn No. 1001§6W

ership No. 050927

UDIN: 2405092 TBKF MFRA4i62-

Place: Kolkata
Datc: 24-05-2024

For and on /6f the Board of Dircctors of
Shriram Credit Company Li

\*%Lux

Akhilesh Kumar Si
Vice Chairman | | Managing Director
DIN : 00421577/ | DIN : 00492377

il Nands

Trina Nandi
Company Secretary
Place:Chennai

Dalc:24-05-2024
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SHRIRAM CREDIT COMPANY LTD

(1) Notes forming part of Financial Statements

1.1Corporate Information

Shriram Credit Company Limited ("the company") is a public limited company domiciled in India
and incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. The company is a Non
DepositSystemically Important companyregistered with the Reserve Bank of India.

1.2 Basis of preparation

The Consolidated Ind AS financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015 (as amended from time to time) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
other relevant provisions of the Act. The financial statements have been prepared under the historical
cost convention or fair values as per the requirements of Ind AS. Accounting policies have been
consistently applied to all periods presented, unless otherwise stated.

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses and the
disclosed amount of contingent liabilities. Areas involving a higher degree of judgement or
complexity, or areas where assumptions are significant to the Company are discussed in Note -
Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions.

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR). '

1.3. Presentation of financial statement
The Consolidated Ind AS financial statements of the Group are presented as per Schedule Il
(Division IIT) of the Companies Act, 2013 applicable to NBFCs, as notified by the Ministry of
Corporate Affairs (MCA). Financial assets and financial liabilities are generally reported on a gross
basis except when, there is an unconditional legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts
without being contingent on a future event and the parties intend to settle on a net basis in the
following circumstances:

i. The normal course of business

ii. The event of default

{ii. The event of insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company and/or its counterparties
Derivative assets and liabilities with master netting arrangements (e.g. International Swaps and
Derivative Association Arrangements) are presented net if all the above criteria are met.

1.4. Statement of compliance

These standalone or separate financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance
with Indian Accounting Standards as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015
as amended and notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the other relevant

provisions of the Act.




SHRIRAM CREDIT COMPANY LTD

1.5. Basis of consolidation

The Group consolidates all entities which are controlled by it. The Group establishes control
when it has power over the entity, is exposed, -or has rights, to variable retums from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect the entity’s returns by using its power
over relevant activities of the entity.

Entities controlled by the Group are consolidated from the date control commences until the
date control ceases. All inter-Group transactions, balances, income and expenses are
eliminated in full on consolidation. Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that do
not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amount of
the Group’s interests and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in
their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount by which the
non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or received
is recognised directly in equity and attributed to shareholders of the Group.

Consolidated Ind AS financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for
like transactions and other events in similar circumstances. If a member of the Group uses
accounting policies other than those adopted in the consolidated financial statements for like
transactions and events in similar circumstances, appropriate adjustments are made to that
Group member’s financial statements in preparing the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements to ensure conformity with the Group’s accounting policies.

The Consolidated Ind AS financial statements of all entities used for the purpose of
consolidation are drawn up to same reporting date as that of the Parent Group, i.e., year ended
31 March 2024. When the end of the reporting period of the Parent is different from that of a
subsidiary, the subsidiary prepares, for consolidation purposes, additional financial
information as of the same date as the financial statements of the Parent to enable the Parent
to consolidate the financial information of the subsidiary, unless it is impracticable to do so.

Consolidation procedure:

(a) Combine like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows of the
parent with those of its subsidiaries. For this purpose, income and expenses of the subsidiary
are based on the amounts of the assets and liabilities recognised in the consolidated financial
statements at the acquisition date.

(b) Offset (eliminate) the carrying amount of the parent’s investment in each subsidiary and
the parent’s portion of equity of each subsidiary. Business combinations policy explains how
to account for any related goodwill,

(c) Eliminate in full intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between entities of the Group (profits or losses resulting from
intragroup transactions that are recognised in assets, are eliminated in full). Intragroup losses
may indicate an impairment that requires recognition in the consolidated financial statements.
Ind AS 12 Income Taxes applies to temporary differences that arise from the elimination of
profits and losses resulting from intragroup transactions.




SHRIRAM CREDIT COMPANY LTD

Profit or loss and each component of OCI are attributed to the equity holders of the parent of
the Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

2. Significant accounting policies

2.1 Financial instruments

(i) Classification of financial instruments

The Group classifies its financial assets into the following measurement categories:

1. Financial assets to be measured at amortised cost
2. Financial assets to be measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
3. Financial assets to be measured at fair value through profit or loss account

The classification depends on the contractual terms of the financial assets’ cash flows and the Group’s

business model for managing financial assets which are explained below:

Business model assessment

The Group determines its business model at the level that best reflects how it manages groups of

financial assets to achieve its business objective.

The Group's business model is not assessed on an instrument-by-instrument basis, but at a higher level

of aggregated portfolios and is based on observable factors such as:

» How the performance of the business model and the financial assets held within that business
model are evaluated and reported to the entity's key management personnel

» The risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within
that business model) and the way those risks are managed

» How managers of the business are compensated (for example, whether the compensation is based
on the fair value of the assets managed or on the contractual cash flows collected)

» ‘The expected frequency, value and timing of sales are also important aspects of the Group’s
assessment. The business model assessment is based on reasonably expected scenarios without
taking ‘worst case' or 'stress case’ scenarios into account. If cash flows after initial recognition are
realised in a way that is different from the Group's original expectations, the Group does not
change the classification of the remaining financial assets held in that business model, but
incorporates such information when assessing newly originated or newly purchased financial

assets going forward.

The Solely Payments of Principal and Interest (SPPI} test

As a second step of its classification process the Group assesses the contractual terms of financial
assets to identify whether they meet the SPPI test.

‘Principal’ for the purpose of this test is defined as the fair value of the financial asset at initial
recognition and may change over the life of the financial asset (for example, if there are repayments
of principal or amortisation of the premium/discount).

In making this assessment, the Group considers whether the contractual cash flows are consistent with
a basic lending arrangement i.e. interest includes only consideration for the time value of money,
credit risk, other basic lending risks and a profit margin that is consistent with a basic lending
arrangement. Where the contractual terms introduce exposure to risk or volatility that are inconsistent
with a basic lending arrangement, the related financial asset is classified and measured at fair value

through profit or loss.




SHRIRAM CREDIT COMPANY LTD

The Group classifies its financial liabilities at amortised costs unless it has designated liabilities at fair
value through the profit and loss account or is required to measure liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss such as derivative liabilities.

(ii) Financial assets measured at amortised cost

Debt instruments
These financial assets comprise bank balances, Loans, Trade receivables, investments and other
financial assets.
Debt instruments are measured at amortised cost where they have:
a) contractual terms that give rise to cash flows on specified dates, that represent solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding; and
b) are held within a business model whose objective is achieved by holding to collect contractual
cash flows.

These debt instruments are initially recognised at fair vatue plus directly attributable transaction costs
and subsequently measured at amortised cost.

(iif) Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income

Debt instruments .
Investments in debt instruments are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
where they have:
a) contractual terms that give rise to cash flows on specified dates, that represent solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding; and
b) are held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual
cash flows and selling financial assets.

These debt instruments are initially recognised at fair value plus directly attributable transaction costs
and subsequently measured at fair value. Gains and losses arising from changes in fair value are
included in other comprehensive income within a separate component of equity. Impairment losses or
reversals, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit and loss.
Upon disposal, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified from equity to the statement of profit and loss.

Equity instruments

Investment in equity instruments that are neither held for trading nor contingent consideration
recognised by the Groupin a business combination to which Ind AS 103 ‘Business Combination’
applies, are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income, where an irrevocable
election has been made by management and when such instruments meet the definition of Equity
under Ind AS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation. Such classification is determined on an
instrument-by-instrument basis. As at reporting date, there are no equity instruments measured at

FVOCI.

Amounts presented in other comprehensive income are not subsequently transferred to profit or loss.
Dividends on such investments are recognised in profit or loss.




SHRIRAM CREDIT COMPANY LTD

(iv) Items at fair value through profit or loss

Items at fair value through profit or loss comprise:

» Investments (including equity shares) held for trading;

« Items specifically designated as fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition; and

» Debt instruments with contractual terms that do not represent solely payments of principal and
interest.

Financial instruments held at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value,
with transaction costs recognised in the statement of profit and loss as incurred. Subsequently, they
are measured at fair value and any gains or losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss as

they arise.

Financial instruments held for trading

A financial instrument is classified as held for trading if it is acquired or incurred principally for
selling or repurchasing in the near term, or forms part of a portfolio of financial instruments that are
managed together and for which there is evidence of short-term profit taking, or it is a derivative not
in a qualifying hedge relationship.

Trading derivatives and trading securities are classified as held for trading and recognised at fair
value.

Financial instruments designated as measured at fair value through profit or loss

Upon initial recognition, financial instruments may be designated as measured at fair value through
profit or loss. A financial asset may only be designated at fair value through profit or loss if doing so
eliminates or significantly reduces measurement or recognition inconsistencies (i.e. eliminates an
accounting mismatch) that would otherwise arise from measuring financial assets or liabilities on a
different basis.

A financial liability may be designated at fair value through profit or loss if it eliminates or
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch or: '

« if a host contract contains one or more embedded derivatives; or

« if financia! assets and liabilities are both managed and their performance evaluated on a fair value
basis in accordance with a documented risk management or investment strategy.

Where a financial liability is designated at fair value through profit or loss, the movement in fair value
attributable to changes in the Group’s own credit quality is calculated by determining the changes in
credit spreads above observable market interest rates and is presented separately in other
comprehensive income. As at the reporting date, the Grouphas not designated any financial
instruments as measured at fair value through profit or loss.

{v) Debt securities and other borrowed funds

After initial measurement, debt issued and other borrowed funds are subsequently measured at
amortised cost. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on issue
funds, and transaction costs that are an integral part of the Effective Interest Rate (EIR).
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(vi) Financial guarantees

Financial guarantees are initially recognised in the financial statements (within Provisions) at fair

value, being the premium received. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group’s liability under each

guarantee is measured at the higher of the amount initially recognised less cumulative amortisation

recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

» The premium is recognised in the statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the life
of the guarantee.

(vii) Reclassification of financial assets and liabilities
The Group does not reclassify its financial assets subsequent to their initial recognition. Financial
liabilities are never reclassified. The Group did not reclassify any of its financial assets or liabilities

(viii) Recognition and De-recognition of financial assets and liabilities

Recognition:

a) Loans and Advances are initially recognised when the funds are transferred to the customers’
account or delivery of assets by the dealer, whichever is earlier.

b) Investments are initially recognised on the settlement date.

¢) Debt securities, deposits and borrowings are initially recognised when funds reach the Group.

d) Other Financial assets and liabilities are initially recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. This includes regular way
trades: purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame
generally established by regulation or convention in the market place.

De-recognition of financial assets due to substantigl modification of terms and conditions:

The Group derecognises a financial asset, such as a loan to a customer, when the terms and conditions
have been renegotiated to the extent that, substantially, it becomes a new loan, with the difference
recognised as a de-recognition gain or loss, to the extent that an impairment loss has not already been
recorded. The newly recognised loans are classified as Stage 1 for ECL measurement purposes, unless
the new loan is deemed to be Purchased or Originated as Credit Impaired (POCI).

If the modification does not result in cash flows that are substantially different, the modification does
not result in de-recognition. Based on the change in cash flows discounted at the original EIR, the
Group records a modification gain or loss, to the extent that an impairment loss has not already been

recorded.

De-recognition of financial assets other than due to substantial modification

a) Financial assets:
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset have expired.
The Group also derecognises the financial asset if it has both transferred the financial asset and the
transfer qualifies for de-recognition.
The Group has transferred the financial asset if, and only if, either:

1. The Group has transferred its contractual rights to receive cash flows from the financial

asset, or
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ii. It retains the rights to the cash flows, but has assumed an obligation to pay the received
cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’
arrangement

Pass-through arrangements are transactions whereby the Group retains the contractual rights to
receive the cash flows of a financial asset (the "original asset’), but assumes a contractual obligation to
pay those cash flows to one or more entities (the 'eventual recipients), when all of the following three
conditions are met:

i. The Group has no obligation to pay amounts to the eventual recipients unless it has
collected equivalent amounts from the original asset, excluding short-term advances with
the right to full recovery of the amount lent plus accrued interest at market rates

i. The Group cannot sell or pledge the original asset other than as security to the eventual
recipients
jil. The Grouphas to remit any cash flows it collects on behalf of the eventual recipients

without material delay. In addition, the Group is not entitled to reinvest such cash flows,
except for investments in cash or cash equivalents including interest earned, during the
period between the collection date and the date of required remittance to the eventual
recipients.

A transfer only qualifies for de-recognition if either:
i. The Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or
ii. The Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, but has transferred control of the asset

The Group considers control to be transferred if and only if, the transferee has the practical ability to
sell the asset in its entirety to an unrelated third party and is able to exercise that ability unilaterally
and without imposing additional restrictions on the transfer.

When the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards and has
retained control of the asset, the asset continues to be recognised only to the extent of the Group’s
continuing involvement, in which case, the Group also recognises an associated liability. The
transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Group has retained.

b) Financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or
expires. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as a de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a
new liability. The difference between the carrying value of the original financial liability and the
consideration paid is recognised in profit or loss.

(ix) Impairment of financial assets
Overview of the ECL principles

The Group records allowance for expected credit losses for all loans, other debt financial assets not
held at FVTPL, together with financial guarantee contracts, in this section all referred to as ‘financial
instruments’, Equity instruments are not subject to impairment under Ind AS 109,
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Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the
expected life of a financial instrument. The [2-month ECL is the portion of Lifetime ECL that
represent the ECLs that result from default events on a financial instrument that are possible within
the 12 months after the reporting date.

Both Lifetime ECLs and 12-month ECLs are calculated on either an individual basis or a collective
basis, depending on the nature of the underlying portfolio of financial instruments. The Group has
grouped its loan portfolio into Loans, Secured loans against Shares and Property.

The Group has established a policy to perform an assessment, at the end of each reporting period, of
whether a financial instrument’s credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition, by
considering the change in the risk of default occurring over the remaining life of the financial
instrument, The Group does the assessment of significant increase in credit risk at a borrower level. If
a borrower has various facilities having different past due status, then the highest days past due (DPD)
is considered to be applicable for all the facilities of that borrower.

Based on the above, the Group categorises its loans into Stage 1, Stage 2 and Stage 3 as described
below:

Stage 1

All exposures where there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition or
that has low credit risk at the reporting date and that are not credit impaired upon origination are
classified under this stage. The Group classifies all standard advances and advances upto 30 days
default under this category. Stage 1 loans also include facilities where the credit risk has improved
and the loan has been reclassified from Stage 2.

Stage 2

All exposures where there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition but are
not credit impaired classified under this stage. 30 Days Past Due is considered as significant increase
in credit risk.

Stage 3
All exposures assessed as credit impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on

the estimated future cash flows of that asset have occurred are classified in this stage. For exposures
that have become credit impaired, a lifetime ECL is recognised and interest revenue is calculated by
applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost (net of provision) rather than the gross
carrying amount. 90 Days Past Due is considered as default for classifying a financial instrument as
credit impaired.

Credit-impaired financial assets:

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost and debt
financial assets carried at FVOCI are credit-impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired” when one
or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset
have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:

a) Significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer,

b) A breach of contract such as a default or past due event;

¢) The restructuring of a loan or advance by the Group on terms that the Group would not consider

otherwise,
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Financial guarantee contracts

The Group’s liability under financial guarantee is measured at the higher of the amount initially
recognised less cumulative amortisation recognised in the statement of profit and loss, and the ECL
provision. For this purpose, the Group estimates ECLs by applying a credit conversion factor.

The mechanics of ECL:

The Group calculates ECLs based on probability-weighted scenarios to measure the expected cash
shortfalls, discounted at an approximation to the EIR. A cash shortfall is the difference between the
cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Group

expects 1o receive.
The mechanics of the ECL calculations are outlined below and the key elements are, as follows:

Probability of Default (PD) - The Probability of Default is an estimate of the likelihood of default
over a given time horizon. A default may only happen at a certain time over the assessed period, if the
facility has not been previously derecognised and is still in the portfolio.

Exposure at Default (EAD)- The Exposure at Default is an estimate of the exposure at a future
default date.

Loss Given Default (LGD) - The Loss Given Default is an estimate of the loss arising in the case
where a default occurs at a given time. It is based on the difference between the contractual cash flows
due and those that the Groupwould expect to receive, including from the realisation of any collateral.
It is usually expressed as a percentage of the EAD.

Forward looking information

While estimating the expected credit losses, the Group reviews macro-economic developments/
natural calamities occurring in the market it operates in. While the internal estimates of PD, LGD
rates by the Group may not be always reflective of such relationships, temporary overlays, if any, are
embedded in the methodology to reflect such trends/events reasonably.

If an event warrants a provision higher than as mandated under ECL methodology, the Group may
make the same.

(x) Write-offs

The Group reduces the gross carrying amount of a financial asset when the Group has no reasonable
expectations of recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. This is generally the
case when the Group determines that the borrower does not have assets or sources of income that
could generate sufficientcash flows to repay the amounts subjected to write-offs. Any subsequent
recoveries against such loans are credited to the statement of profit and loss.
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(xi) Determination of fair value

On initial recognition, all the financial instruments are measured at fair value.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

i In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
ii. In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic
best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs
and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

In order to show how fair values have been derived, financial instruments are classified based on a
hierarchy of valuation techniques, as summarised below:

Level | financial instruments - Those where the inputs used in the valuation are unadjusted quoted
prices from active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Group has access to at the
measurement date. The Group considers markets as active only if there are sufficient trading activities
with regards to the volume and liquidity of the identical assets or liabilities and when there are
binding and exercisable price quotes available on the balance sheet date.

Level 2 financial instruments - Those where the inputs that are used for valuation and are significant,
are derived from directly or indirectly observable market data available over the entire period of the
instrument’s life. Such inputs include quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets,
quoted prices for identical instruments in inactive markets and observable inputs other than quoted
prices such as interest rates and yield curves, implied volatilities, and credit spreads. In addition,
adjustments may be required for the condition or location of the asset or the extent to which it relates
to items that are comparable to the valued instrument. However, if such adjustments are based on
unobservable inputs which are significant to the entire measurement, the Group will classify the
instruments as Level 3.

Level 3 financial instruments - Those that include one or more unobservable input that is significant to
the measurement as whole.

The Group recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting
period during which the change has occurred,
Day 1 profit or loss

-
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The best evidence of the fair value of a financial instrument at initial recognition is the transaction
price (i.e. the fair value of the consideration given or received) unless the fair value of that instrument
is evidenced by comparison with other observable current market transactions in the same instrument
(i.e. without modification or repackaging) or based on a valuation technique whose variables include
only data from observable markets. When such evidence exists, the Group recognises the difference
between the transaction price and the fair value in profit or loss on initial recognition (i.e. on day one).

When the transaction price of the instrument differs from the fair value at origination and the fair
value is based on a valuation technique using only inputs observable in market transactions, the Group
recognises the difference between the transaction price and fair value in net gain on fair value
changes. In those cases where fair value is based on models for which some of the inputs are not
observable, the difference between the transaction price and the fair value is deferred and is only
recognised in profit or loss when the inputs become observable, or when the instrument is
derecognised.

2.2Revenue from operations

(i) Interest Incomie

Interest income is recognised by applying the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) to the gross carrying
amount of financial assets other than credit-impaired assets and financial assets classified as measured
at FVTPL.

The EIR in case of a financial asset is computed
a. As the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset.
b. By considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument in estimating the cash
flows
¢. Including all fees received between parties to the contract that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs, and all other premiums or discounts.

Any subsequent changes in the estimation of the future cash flows is recognised in interest income
with the corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount of the assets.

Interest income on credit impaired assets is recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the net
amortised cost (net of provision) of the financial asset.

(ii) Dividend Income
Dividend income is recognised
a. When the right to receive the payment is established,
b. it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the entity
and
c. the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably
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(iti) Rental Income

Rental income arising from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
In cases where the increase is in line with expected general inflation Rental Income is recognised as
per the contractual terms.

Operating leases are leases where the Group does not transfer substantially all of the risk and benefits
of ownership of the asset.

{iv) Fees & Commission Income

Fees and commissions are recognised when the Group satisfies the performance obligation, at fair
value of the consideration received or receivable based on a five-step model as set out below, unless
included in the effective interest calculation:

Step 1: Identify contract(s) with a customer

Step 2: Identify performance obligations in the contract

Step 3: Determine the transaction price

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract
Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the Group satisfies a performance obligation

(v) Net gain on Fair value changes

Any differences between the fair values of financial assets classified as fair value through the profit or
loss ,held by the Groupon the balance sheet date is recognised as anunrealisedgain / loss. In cases
there is a net gain in the aggregate, the same is recognised in “Net gains on fair value changesunder
Revenue from operations and if there is a net loss the same is disclosed under “Expenses” in the
statement of Profit and Loss.

However, net gain / loss on de-recognition of financial instruments classified as amortised cost is
presented separately under the respective head in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Similarly, any realised gain or loss on sale of financial instruments measured at FVTPL presented
separately under the respective head in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

2.3 Expenses
(i) Finance costs
Finance costs represents Interest expense recognised by applying the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) to
the gross carrying amount of financial liabilities.
The EIR in case of a financial liability is computed
a. As the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments through the expected life of
the financial liability to the gross carrying amount of the amortised cost of a financial
liability.
b. By considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument in estimating the cash
flows
¢. Including all fees paid between parties to the contract that are an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs, and all other premiums or discounts.

Any subsequent changes in the estimation of the future cash flows is recognised in interest income
with the corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount of the assets.
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Interest expense includes issue costs that are initially recognized as part of the carrying value of the
financial liability and amortized over the expected life using the effective interest method. These
include fees and commissions payable to advisers and other expenses such as external legal costs,
Rating Fee etc, provided these are incremental costs that are directly related to the issue of a financial
liability. '

(ii) Retirement and other employee benefits

Short term employee benefit

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as
short-term employee benefits. These benefits include short term compensated absences such as paid
annual leave. The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in
exchange for the services rendered by employees is recognised as an expense during the period.
Benefits such as salaries and wages, etc. and the expected cost of the bonus/ex-gratia are recognised
in the period in which the employee renders the related service.

Post-employment employee benefits

a) Defined contribution schemes :

All the employees of the Group are entitled to receive benefits under the Provident Fund Scheme,
defined contribution plans in which both the employee and the Group contribute monthly at a
stipulated rate. The Group has no lability for future benefits other than its annual contribution and
recognises such contributions as an expense in the period in which employee renders the related
service. If the contribution payable to the scheme for service received before the Balance Sheet date
exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognised as a liability
after deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution
due for services received before the Balance Sheet date, then excess is recognised as an asset to the
extent that the pre-payment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

b) Defined Benefit schemes

The Group provides for the gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan covering all employees. The
plan provides for lump sum payments to employees upon death while in employment or on separation
from employment after serving for the stipulated years mentioned under “The Payment of Gratuity
Act, 1972°. The present value of the obligation under such defined benefit plan is determined based
on actuarial valuation, carried out by an independent actuary at each Balance Sheet date, using the
Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognizes each period of service as giving rise to an additional
unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final
obligation.

The obligation is measured at the present value of the estimated future cash flows. The discount rates
used for determining the present value of the obligation under defined benefit plan are based on the
market yields on Government Securities as at the Balance Sheet date.

Net interest recognized in profit or loss is calculated by applying the discount rate used to measure the
defined benefit obligation to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The actual return on the plan
assets above or below the discount rate is recognized as part of re-measurement of net defined liability
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assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination
of the discount rate, attrition rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities
involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, these liabilities are highly sensitive to changes in
these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

The Group fully contributes all ascertained liabilities to The Trustees - Shriram Credit Group Ltd
Employees Group Gratuity Assurance Scheme. Trustees administer contributions made to the trust
and contributions are invested in a scheme of insurance with Life Insurance Corporation of India ,the
IRDA approved Insurance Group.

Re-measurement, comprising of actuarial gains and losses and the return on plan assets (excluding
amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognized immediately in the
balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period in
which they occur. Re-measurements are not reclassified to profit and loss in subsequent periods.

Other long-term empioyee benefits

Group’s liabilities towards compensated absences to employees are accrued on the basis of valuations,
as at the Balance Sheet date, carried out by an independent actuary wsing Projected Unit Credit
Method. Actuarial gains and losses comprise experience adjustments and the effects of changes in
actuarial assumptions and are recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

The Group presents the Provision for compensated absences under provisions in the Balance Sheet.

(iii) Rent Expense:

Identification of Lease:

The determination of whether an arrangement is a lease, or contains a lease, is based on the substance
of the arrangement and requires an assessment of whether the fulfilment of the arrangement is
dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets or whether the arrangement conveys a right to use
the asset.

Recognition of lease paymenls:

Rent Expenses representing operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the statement of
profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term, unless the increase is in line with expected
general inflation, in which case lease payments are recognised based on contractual terms.

Leases that do not transfer to the Group substantially all of risks and benefits incidental to ownership
of the leased items are operating leases.

(iv) Other income and expenses
All Other income and expense are recognized in the period they accrue.

(v) Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amount of assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date if there is any indication of
impairment based on intemal/external factors. An impairment loss is recognized wherever the
carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the greater of
the assets, net selling price and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and risks specific to the asset.
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In determining net selling price, recent market transactions are taken into account, if available. If no
such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. After impairment,
depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its remaining useful life.

(vi) Taxes

Current Tax

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior years are measured at the amount expected
to be recovered from, or paid to, the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute
the amount are those that are enacted, or substantively enacted, by the reporting date in the countries
where the Group operates and generates taxable income.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or
loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in
correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax :

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised for temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts. Deferred income tax is determined using tax
rates (and laws) that have been enacted or.substantively enacted by the reporting date and are
expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax
liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are only recognised for temporary differences, unused tax losses and unused tax
credits if it is probable that future taxable amounts will arise to utilise those temporary differences and
losses. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset where there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax assets and liabilities and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same
taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a
net basis or their tax assets and liabilities are realised simultancously.

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT)

Minimum altenate tax (MAT) paid in a year is charged to the statement of profit and loss as current
tax. The Group recognizes MAT credit available as an asset only to the extent that it is probable that
the Group will pay normal income tax during the specified period, i.e., the period for which MAT
credit is allowed to be carried forward. In the year in which the Group recognizes MAT credit as an
asset in accordance with the Guidance Note on Accounting for Credit Available in respect of
Minimum Alternative Tax under the Income-tax Act, 1961, the said asset is created by way of credit
to the statement of profit and loss and shown as “MAT Credit Entitlement.” The Group reviews the
MAT Credit Entitlement asset at each reporting date and writes down the asset to the extent the Group
does not have convincing evidence that it will pay normal tax during the specified period.

Goods and services tax fvalue added taxes paid on acquisition of assels or on incurring expenses
Expenses and assets are i
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i When the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the
taxation authority, in which case, the tax paid is recognised as part of the cost of
acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item, as applicable

ii. When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of tax included

The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of
receivables or payables in the balance sheet.

2.4 Foreign currency translation

(i) Functional and presentational currency

The standalone financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees which is also functional currency
of the Group and the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Group operates.

(ii) Transactions and balances

Initial recognition:
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions.

Conversion:

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency, which are outstanding as at the year-
end, are translated at the year-end at the closing exchange rate and the resultant exchange differences
are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
spot exchange rates as at the date of recognition.

2.5Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise the net amount of short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible to known amounts of cash (short-term deposits with an original maturity of three
months or less) and are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value, cheques on hand and
balances with banks. They are held for the purposes of meeting short-term cash commitments (rather
than for investment or other purposes).

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents constst of cash and short-
term deposits, as defined above.

2.6 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment (PPE) are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment, (if any). The total cost of assets comprises its purchase price, freight, duties,
taxes and any other incidental expenses directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by the management.
Changes in the expected useful life are accounted for by changing the amortisation period or
methodology, as appropriate, and treated as changes in accounting estimates.

Subsequent expenditure related to an item of tangible asset are added to its gross value only if it

increases the future be of the existing asset, beyond its previously assessed standards of
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performance and cost can be measured reliably. Other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed off
as and when incurred.

Depreciation

Depreciation is provided on Written Down Value (WDV) at the rates prescribed in Schedule II of the
Companies Act, 2013 except Leasehold Land which is amortized over the period of lease agreement
on straight line basis. Additions during the year are being depreciated on a pro-rata basis from the date
on which the asset was put to use. Similarly where any asset has been sold, discarded, demolished or
destroyed, the depreciation on such asset is calculated on a pro-rata basis upto the date on which such
asset has been sold, discarded, demolished or destroyed.

2.7 Intangible assets

Intangible assets being Computer Software acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at
cost, Intangible assets are carried at cost less amortization and impairment losses. It is amortized on
straight line basis over the estimated useful life which is presumed to be five years at present.

For transition to Ind AS, the Group has elected to continue with carrying value of all.its intangible
assets recognised as of 1 April, 2017 (transition date) measured as per the previous GAAP and use
that carrying value as its deemed cost as of transition date.

2.8 Investment Property

Properties, held to eam rentals and/or capital appreciation are classified as investment property and
measured and reported at cost, including transaction costs. For transition to Ind AS, the Group has
elected to adopt as deemed cost, the carrying value of investment property as per Indian GAAP less
accumulated depreciation and cumulative impairment (if any) as on the transition date of April 1,
2017.

Investment properties (other than land) are depreciated using WDV method over their estimated
useful lives. Investment properties generally have a useful life of 60 years. The useful life has been
determined based on technical evaluation by management.

On transition to Ind AS, the group has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its
investment properties recognised as at 1st April 2017, measured as per previous GAAP and use that
carrying value as the deemed cost of investment properties.

2.9 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the enterprise has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of past events, and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the

obligation.

When the effect of the time value of money is material, the enterprise determines the level of
provision by discounting the expected cash flows at a pre-tax rate reflecting the current rates specific
to the liability. The expense relating to any provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss
net of any reimbursement.
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2.10 Contingent Liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the
control of the Group or a present obligation that is net recognized because it is not probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in
extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured
reliably. The Group does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial
statements.

2.11 Earning Per Share

The Group reports basic and diluted eamings per share in accordance with Ind AS 33 on Earnings per
share. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity
shareholders (after deducting preference dividend and attributable taxes) by the weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable
to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are
adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares. Dilutive potential equity shares are
deemed converted as of the beginning of the period, unless they have been issued at a later date. In
computing the dilutive earnings per share, only potential equity shares that are dilutive and that either
reduces the earnings per share or increases loss per share are included.

3 Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the Ind AS requires the management to
make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses,
assets and liabilities and the acGrouping disclosure and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the
end of the reporting period. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and
future periods are affected. Although these estimates are based on the management’s best knowledge
of current events and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in the
outcomes requiring a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities in future
periods.

In particular, information about significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgments in
applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the
financial statements is included in the following notes:

3.1 Business Model Assessment

Classification and measurement of financial assets depends on the results of the SPPI and the business
model test. The Group determines the business model at a leve! that reflects how groups of financial
assets are managed together to achieve a particular business objective. This assessment includes
judgement reflecting all relevant evidence including how the performance of the assets is evaluated
and their performance measured, the risks that affect the performance of the assets and how these are
managed and how the managers of the assets are compensated. The Group monitors financial assets
measured at amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income that are derecognised
prior to their maturity to understand the reason for their disposal and whether the reasons are
consistent with the objective of the business for which the asset was held. Monitoring is part of the
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Group’s continuous assessment of whether the business model for which the remaining financial
assets are held continues to be appropriate and if it is not appropriate whether there has been a change
in business model and so a prospective change to the classification of those assets.

3.2 Defined employee benefit assets and liabilities

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are
determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions
that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the
discount rate; future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the
valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these
assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

3.3 Fair value measurement:

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be
measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using various
valuation techniques. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible,
but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment is required in establishing fair values. Judgments
include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in
assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.

3.4 Impairmeat of loans portfolio

The measurement of impairment losses across all categories of financial assets requires judgement, in
particular, the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows and collateral values when
determining impairment losses and the assessment of a significant increase in credit risk. These
estimates are driven by a number of factors, changes in which can result in different levels of
allowances.

It has been the Group’s policy to regularly review its models in the context of actual loss experience
and adjust when necessary.

3.5 Contingent liabilities and provisions other than impairment on loan portfolio

The Group operates in a regulatory and legal environment that, by nature, has a heightened element of
litigation risk inherent to its operations. As a result, it is involved in various litigation, arbitration in
the ordinary course of the Group’s business.

When the Group can reliably measure the outflow of economic benefits in relation to a specific case
and considers such outflows to be probable, the Group records a provision against the case. Where the
probability of outflow is considered to be remote, or probable, but a reliable estimate cannot be made,
a contingent liability is disclosed.

Given the subjectivity and uncertainty of determining the probability and amount of losses, the Group
takes into account a number of factors including legal advice, the stage of the matter and historical
evidence from similar incidents. Significant judgement is required to conclude on these estimates.
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3.6 Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method

The Group’s EIR methodology, recognises interest income / expense using a rate of return that
represents the best estimate of a constant rate of return over the expected behavioural life of loans
given / taken and recognises the effect of potentially different interest rates at various stages and other
characteristics of the product life cycle (including prepayments and penalty interest and charges).

This estimation, by nature, requires an element of judgement regarding the expected behaviour and
life-cycle of the instruments, as well expected changes to India’s base rate and other fee
income/expense that are integral parts of the instrument

3.7 Other estimates:
These include contingent liahilities, useful lives of tangible and intangible assets etc.




SHRIRAM CREDIT COMPANY LIMITED
Notes ta the audited and Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 4; Cash and cash equivalents

Rs. in Lakhs
Particulars Asat As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Cash on hand 10.72 10.48
Balances with banks -
In current account 2,80047 3,719.73
In deposit accounts - with maturity less than 3 months 200.21 1,200.72
Total 3,011.40 4.930.93
Note 5: Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents
Rs. in Lakhs
Particulars As at Asat
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Deposit with maturity for more than 3 months but less than 12 months* 10,654.20 3,497.70
Deposit with original maturity of more than 12 months 8.87 7.44
Balance with banks to the extent held as Margin Money or security against the 14,782.65 9,221.25
botrowings, guarantees, other commitments**
Total 25,445.72 12,726.39

*Includes i) Fixed deposits under lien with stock exchanges amounted to Rs 4675.50 lakhs (March 31, 2023 : Rs.1,275 lakhs); ii) coflateral scourity

towards bank guarantees issued amounted to Rs.2500 lakhs (March 31, 2023 ; Rs.1280 lakhs);
amounted to Rs 3,000 lakhs (March 31, 2023 : RsNil), iv) collateral security against Debtors Funding Facility amounte

2023 : RsNil); v) Others Rs 27.67 Leas (March 31,2023 : Rs Nil Lacs )

iii) collateral security against bank overdralt facility
d to Rs 50 takhs (March 31,

*#[Bank guarantee drawdown as on 31t March 2024 is Rs.2,965 lakhs (31st March 2023 - Rs.5,490 lakhs), deposits to the extent of 50% of this

amount is kept as security for this purpose in one of the sunsidiaries]

Note 6: Receivables

{I) Trade Receivables Rs. in Lakhs
Particulars As at Asat
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Trade receivables considered good- Secured 2.805.94 2,537.54
Trade receivables considered good- Unsecured 2,584.97 2,282.72
Trade receivables — credit impaired 255,25 241.52
Gross Total 5,646.16 5,061.78
1.ess: Provision for Bad Debts 277.21 264.48
Net Total 5,368.95 4,797.30
{IT) Other Receivahles Rs. in Lakhs
Particulars Asat As at
March 31,2024 March 31,2023
Other Receivables 1,850.62 284540
Total 1,850.62 2,845.40
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SHRIRAM CREDIT COMPANY LIMITED

Notes to the audited and Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 9; OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

Rs. in Lakhs
Particulars As at As at
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023

Prepaid Expenses 17.79 269
Security Deposits 3,133.92 2,948.34
Statutory recievabie 18.99 3281
Accrued Interest 57218 773.20
Advance to Supplier 148.46 107.13
Advance to Employees - 51.99
Receivable from Exchange 734.73 844.73

Net Gratuity Liability reccivable 48.99 -
Others 412.58 198.18
Total 5,088.15 4,959.07

Note 10: Deferred Tax Asset
Rs. in Lalhs
. As at Asat
Particulars March 31,2024 March 31, 2023

Opcaing halance 1,319.46 911.60
Add: Asset recognized during the year 455.61 407.86

Less: Set-off during the year - -
Deferred Tax Asset 1,775.07 1,319.46
Total 1,775.07 1,319.46




SHRIRAM CREDIT COMPANY LIMITED

Notes to the andited and Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 11: INVESTMENT PROPERTY

As at April 01, 2022

Rs. in Lakhs
Parficulars Sofiware Tatal

Gross carrying amount as at Aprit 01, 2022 32.39 32.39
Additions - -
Disposals - -
Gross carrying amount as at March 31, 2023 32.39 32,39
Additions - -
Disposals - -
Gross carrying amount as at March 31, 2024 32.39 32.39
Accumulated Amortization and impairment
Balance as at April 01, 2022 19.63 19.63
Amortization for the year 0.95 0.95
Amortization on disposals - -
Balance as at March 31, 2023 20.58 20.58
Amortization for the period 0.95 0.95
Amortization on disposals - -
Balance as at March 31, 2024 21.53 21.53
Net Carrying amount
As at March 31, 2024 10.86 10.36
As at March 31, 2023 11.81 11.81

12.76 1276
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SHRIRAM CREDIT COMPANY LIMITED
Notes to the audited and Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 13: INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Rs. in Lakhs
Particulars Software Total

Gross carrying amount as at April 01, 2022 829.1% §29.1%
Addition on account of acquisition of subsidiary - -
Additions 5861 58.61
Disposals 3792 37.92
Gross carrying amount as at March 31, 2023 849.87 849.87
Additions 53.54 3354
Disposals 75.97 75.97
Gross carrying amount as at March 31, 2024 827.44 827.44
Accumulated Amortization and impairment
Bzlance as at April 01, 2022 690,68 690.68
Amortization for the year 26.66 26.66
Atnortization on disposals 37.71 37.71
Balance as a2t March 31, 2023 679.63 679.63
Amortization for the year 42.52 42.52
Amortization on disposals 72.18 7218
Balance as at March 31, 2024 649.97 649.97
Tutangibles nnder Development as at March 31,2024 347.30 347.30
Intangibles under Development as at March 31,2023 45.00 45.00
As at March 31, 2024 177.47 17747
As at March 31, 2023 170.24 170.24
As at April 01, 2022 138.50 138.50
Useful Life of the asset (In Years)
Method of depreciation Refer Note No. 2 21

* Fair value of brand recognised in Business Combination transaction. Since the brand has indefinite usefull life the
same s not subject to amortization but tested for impairment on an annual basis.

The Company has elected to continue with the carrying value for all of its intangible asset as recognised in the
financial statements as at the date of transition to Ind AS i.e. 1¥ April, 2017, measured as per the previous GAAP and
use that as its deemed cost as at the date of transition. The carmying value as at 1st April 2017 amounting to
Rs.260.17 Lacs of intangible asset represents gross cost of Rs.3,189.12 Lacs net of Accumulated depreciation of
Rs.2,928 95 Lacs.

b) Depreciation for the year includes depreciation relating to insurance business amounting to Rs.233.59 Lacs
(Rs,147.02 Lacs for the previaus year).




SHRIRAM CREDIT COMPANY LIMITED

Notes to the andited and Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 14: OTHER NON FINANCIAL ASSETS Rs. in Lakhs
. As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Prepaid Expenses 23357 241.73
Stalutory Receivables 192.30 14588
Advance to refated parties - -
Unbilled Revenue 2573 19.73
Gratity Fund (Net of Provision) 197.79 273.70
Capital Advance - 0.32
Deposit with Statatory Authorities 750.00 -
Others 6.41 4993
Total 1,405.80 731.29
Note 15: TRADE PAYABLES Rs. in Lakhs
Particulars As at Asat
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Total outstanding dues of micro caterprises and small
enlerprises 1.00 -
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than miceo 19,852.29 12,015.40
and small enterprises
Creditors for expenses
Total 19,853.29 12,015.40
As at March 31, 2024
Particulars Outstanding for the following periods from the due date of paymeni
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years more than 3 years Total
{i) MSME 1.00 - - - 1.00
(i) Qthers 19,541.10 40.52 4.78 265.89 19,352.7%
{1ii) Disputed dues- MSME - - - - -
(iv) Disputed dues- Others - - - - -
As at March 31, 2023
Particulars Guistanding for the Tollowing periods from the due date of payment
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years more than 3 years Tatal
(i) MSME - - - - -
{ii) Others 11,314.14 51.19 172.4% 477.58 12,015.40
(iii} Prisputed dues- MSME - - - - -

(iv) Disputed dues- Others
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SHRIRAM CREDIT COMPANY LIMITED

Notes to the audited and Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 19: PROVISIONS

Rs. in Lakhs
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Provision for Employee benefits
1.Provision for Gratuity 1,009.72 086.37
2. Provision for Leave encashment 566.62 477.45
3.Provision for Bonus 49.01 53.86
Others
Provision on standard asseis 12.14 5.33
Provision for Distribution of Expenses - -
Provision for expenses - -
Total 1,637.49 1,523.01
Note 20: OTHER NON-FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Rs. in Lakhs
. As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Statutory & Other Dues pertaining to employees 118.96 83.61
Employee related liabilities 17.80 17.63
Security Deposits 907.18 789.03
Claims & Other Payables 210.51 35113
Others - -
Total 1,254.45 1,271.40




SHRI
Notes

RAM CREDIT COMPANY LIMITED

to the audited and Cond dC lidated Financial Stah

Note 21: EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

21.1 Share Capital Rs. in Lakhs
. As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Particulars -
No. of Shares Rs. In Lakhs MNo. of Shares Rs. In Lakhs
Authorised Share Capital:
Equity shares of Re. [0/~ each 2,70,00,000 2,700.00 2,70,00,004 2,700.00
Compulsenly Convertible Preference Shares of Rs. 10/~ each - - - -
2,70,00.000 2,700.04 2, 70,040,000 2,700.00
Issued, subscribed and paid up capital:
Equity share of Rs. 10/- each 2,40,63,129 2,406.31 2,40,63,129 240631

Terms/righis attached to share holders
The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs.10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vate per share.

In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company, afler distribution of afl preferential amounts. The
distribution wilt be in propartion to the nwmber of equity shares held by the share bolders.

Yy

of equity shares and equity share capit:

a) Reconciliation of

. As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Particulars
Number Rs. In Lakhs Number Ra, In Lakhs
Balance as at the Eginuing of the year 2,40,63,129 2,404.31 2,40,63,129 2,406.31
Incrense/Decrense - - - -
Balance as at the end of the year 2,40,63,129 2,406,31 2,40,63,129 240631

b} Details of shares held by holding company or its ultimate holding company including shares held by subsidiary or associates of holding company or the uliimate holding

company
As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
N. f Sharcholde - .
ame o Y No. of Shares %o of Huhling No. of Shares % of Holding
Shricam Investment Holdings Private Limited 2,40,61,859 99.99% 2,40.61.859 99.99%,
¢) Details of sharcholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Company:
Name of Shorehelder As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
No. of Shares % of Holding Na. of Shares % of Holding
Shriram lov t Holdinps Private Limited 240,461,859 99.9%% 2.40,61,559 100%|
21,2 Subordingted Liability
As ai March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Particulars
No. of Shares Rs. In Lakhs No. of Sharss Rs. In Lakhs
Authorised Preference Shares:
6.5% Nog - Convertible C fative Red ble Pref
2,50,00,000 500.00 2,50,00,000 2,500.00
Shares (Tenore 10 years) 2
2,50,00,000 2,500.00 2,50,00,000 |- 2,500.00
Issued, subscribed and paid up capital:
2.40,00,000 2.400.00 2,40.00,000 2 A00.00
Preference share of Rs, 10/- each
a} Reconciliation of number of Preference shares
R As at March 31,2024 As at March 31, 2023
Particalars
Numaber Rs. In Lulhs Number Rs. In Lulhs
Balance as at the beginning of the ycar 2.40,00,00{) 2,400.00 2,40,00,000 2.400.00
Increase/Decrease - - - -
Balance as at the end of the year 2,40,00,000 2.400.00 - =
b) Details of shares held by holding pany or its ulti holding pany including shares held by subsidiary or iates of holding pany or the ulti holding
company
As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2623
Name of Sharcholder
No. of Shares % of Holding Nao. of Shares % of Holding
Shriram lnv t Holdings Private Limited 2,40,00,000 100.60% 2,40,00,000 100%
¢) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Company:
Ag at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2013
Name of Sharcholder
No, of Shares % of Holding No. of Shares % of Halding
[Shriram Investment Holdings Private Limited 2,40,00,000 100.00% 2,40,00,000 100%




SHRIRAM CREDIT COMPANY LIMITED
Notes to the audited and Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 22; OTHER EQUITY Rs. in Lakhs
. As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2024 Mareh 31, 2023

Capital Reserve

Opening balance 4,103.74 4,017.64
s . . (5.56) -

Add: Adjustment due te composite scheme of arrangement & amalgamation

Add: Other adjustment in Subsidiaries/Associates - 86.10

Add:Adjustment against Retained Earnings - -

Closing halance 4,098.18 4,103.74

Secarities Premium Reserve

Opening balance 7,684.39 7,336.53

Add:Adjustment against Retained Earnings (30.46)

Add: Premium on ESOP 102,07 347 87

Closing balance 7,755.99 7,684.39

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME:

Opening balance

Add; Other Comprehensive Income for the year

Add: Revaluation of Tnvestments

Less: Reclassification Adjustment in fair value investment

Closing balance -

General Reserve

Opening balance 15.27 15.27

Add: Other adjustment in Subsidiaries/Associates -

Closing balance 15,27 15.27

Statutory Reserve

Opening balance 957.48 93748

Add: Total Comprehensive Income for the year -

Add: Other adjustment in Subsidiaries/Associates -

Add: Transfer to Statutory Reserve 70.45 -

Closing balance 1,027.93 957.48

Retzined earnings

Opening balance 14,604.46 1524111

Add: Transfer for the period 2,588.18 -

Add: Total Comprehensive Income for the Period 41.14 (781300

Add: Adjustment against Retained Earnings 15.59 144.65

Add: Other Adjustment 0 -

Add: Transfer upon conversion into equity share 1,040.89 -

Less:Transfer to Statutory Reserve (70.45)

Closing balance 18,219.82 14,604.46

ESOP

Opening balance 11.41 3.08

Add: Qther adjustment in Subsidiaries/Associates {0.23)

Add: Transfer for the peniod ended 3 1st March 2023 11.41

Add: Adjustment against Retained Earnings 75.87 {3.08)

Closing balance 87.05 11.41

Total 31,204.24 27,376.75




SHRIRAM CREDIT COMPANY LIMITED
Notes to the audited and Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
Nature and purpose of reserve

Capital Reserve
Capital reserve is the excess of net assets taken over cost of consideration paid during amalgamation.

General Reserve

Under the erstwhile Companies Act, 1956, general reserve was created through an annual transfer of net income at a specified percentage
in accordance with applicable regulations. Consequent to introduction of Companies

Act, 2013, the tequirement to mandatorily transfer a specified percentage of the net profit to general reserve has been withdrawn.
However, the amount previously transferred to the general reserve can be utilised only in accordance with

the specific requirements of Companies Act, 2013

Statutory Reserve
Shriram Credit Company Ltd. transters a sum of not jess than twenty per cent of net profit of that year as disclosed in the statement of
profit and loss to its Statutory Reserve pursuant to Section 43-fC of the RBI Act, 1934,

Retained carnings
Retained carnings are the profits that the Company has earned till date, fess any transfers to statutory reserves and other reserves.

Employee Stock Option Plan Outstanding account

The share-based payment reserve is used to recognise the value of equity-settled share based payments provided to employees, including
key management personnel, as part of their remuneration.

Securities Premium Reserve

The amount received in excess of face value of the equity shares is recognised in securitics premium. The reserve can be utilised only for
limited purposes such as issuance of bonus shares in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,

Remeasurements of the net defined benefit plans

Remeasurement, comprising of actuarial gains and losses and the return on plan assets {excluding amounts included in net interest on the
net defined bencfit liability), are recopnised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained eamings
through OCT in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to the statement of profit and loss in subsequent
periods

Surplus/(Deficit) in Revenue account ( Policyholders Account)

Capital Reserve on Consolidation

Amalgamation Adj Reserve




SHRIRAM CREDIT COMPANY LIMITED

Nates to the audited and Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 23; INTEREST INCOME

Bs inlakhs
. Year ended Year tnded
Particulsrs March 31,2024 | March 31, 2023
Interest on toan portfolio and other related charges 4991 434 58
Interest income trom Investments 720.39 765.17
Interest on deposits with Banks 1,149.77 144.06
Interest income fror operation 1,660.71 749.70
Interest Income - -
Total 3,580.78 2,093.51
Nate 24: DIVIDEND INCOME
Rs. in Lakhs
Particul Year ended Year ended
cutars March 31,2024 | March 31, 2023
Dividend Income- Others 322 3.6%
Total .22 3,69
Naute 25: FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME
Rs. in Lakhs
Particulars Yearended Year ended
March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
Commission, Brokerage & Other Service Charges 22,251.26 26,681.52
Total ) 22,251 .24 26,681.92
NOTE 26: NET GAIN ON FAIR VALUE CHANGES
Rs. in Lakhs
. Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31,2024 | March 31, 2023
{A) Net gain / (loss) on financial instruments at fair value
through profit or loss 938 44 172.33
Fair Vale Changes:
-Realized 780.67 622,10
“Unrealised 157.77 (449.77)
Total 938.44 172.33
Nate 27: OTHER INCOME
Rs. in Lakhs
Particul Year ended Year ended
articulars March 31,2024 | March 31,2023
Fair Value Gain on Investment - -
Profit on sale of Mututal Fund - -
Profit on sale of Fixed Assets 0.13 0.46
Recovery from Drs. Previously wrilten off as bad 71.15 29.40
Other Non-operating Income 20275 319.68
Misc Income - -
Total 364.03 349.54
Note 28;: FINANCE COSTS
Rs. in Lakhs
Partical Year ended Year ended
Articulars March 31,2024 | March 31, 2023
Interest paid on Loans 49393 69881
Interest on lease liability 95.05 93.12
Other Interest 0.29 -
Total 589.27 791.93




SHRIRAM CREDIT COMPANY LIMITED

Notes to the audited and Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 29: EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES

Rs. in Lakhs
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31,2024 | March 31, 2023
Salaries and bonus ©,258.23 10,590.06
Contribution to provident and cther funds 510.58 588.01
Staff welfare 291.60 133.40
Employee share based payments 121.30 16.61
Total 10,181.71 11,328.08
Note 30: OTHER EXPENSES
Rs. in Lakhs
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
Business Promotion Expenses 53058 573.19
Marketing and Business Promotion Expenses - -
Payment to Auditors
Statutory Audit Fees 36.88 55.21
Tax Audit Fees 1.67 1.40
Reimbursement of Expenses 0.07 0.1%
Professional charges 1,054.33 1,661.21
Rent and Amenities 179.52 371.80
Distribution expenses - -
Repairs and Maintenance 566.72 669 68
CSR expenses 10.32 11.86
Traveliing and conveyance expenses 298.16 412.22
Commission & Distribution expenses - -
Printing & stationary 12091 79.97
Communication expenses 272.63 348.34
Electricity expense 189.52 173.77
Internal Audit and Congurrent Audit Fees - -
Royalty Charges 12379 79.20
Call Centre Charges 43.05 -
Rates and taxes 60.72 69.87
IT expenses 283.13 95.18
Insurance expenses 97.93 1E0.27
Depository and membership charges 575.08 612.81
Dircctor sitting fees 31.30 29.08
Meeting expenses 63.09 62.96
Mutual fund expenses 91.67 23.19
Onther Expenses 183.58 95.59
Total 4,823.65 §,837.95
Note 31; PROVISIONS & WRITE OFFS
Rs. in Lakhs
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 | Mareh 31, 2023
Provision for Bad debt Written OfT 246 19.15
Provision for Standard Assets 6.81 (3.79)
Other write offs 10.01 -
Total 19.28 15.36




SHRIRAM CREDIT COMPANY LIMITED

Nate 32: Related party disclosurea
A Names of Related parties and nature of relationship:

Ultimate bolding company

Shriraen Capital Private Limited {(Formerly known as Shriram Financial Ventures
{Chennai) Private Limited)*

Entity having significant influcace

Shriram Ownerskip Trust {SOT)

Holding Company

Subgidiaries

Shriram Investrent Holdings Private Linvited (Formerly bnown as Shriram Investuent
| Holdings Limited)

Shriram Insight $hare Brokers Limited

Shriram Wealth Limited (Formerly known as Skriram Wealth Advisors Limited)
SEA Funds Management Tndia Private Limited

Shriram Farlune Sofution Limited {SFSL)

Way2Wealth Brokers Private Limited

Shriram Asset Management Company Limited {SAMCO}

Novac Digital Services Pvt. Ld. (NDSPL) (Formerly known as Techfaciory Services
Private Limited (TSP1))

Prometer Group

WayZWealth Commodities Private Limited

Shriram Overseas Investments Private Limited*

'Way2Wealth Insurance Brokers Private Limited*

Shriram Asset Reconstruction Private Limied®

Shriram Value Services Limited

Novae GT Technology fw.e.f Ociaber 18, 2023%

Novac Technology FZCO (w.e.f February 8,2023%)

‘Novae Technology Solutions Private Limited

Armour Insurance Services WLL, Bahrain®

Bharath Investmients Pte. Lid., Singapore®

Shrivam LT Holdings Private Limited * (Formerty known as Snouror Technology
Services Private Limited) )

Shriram Gl Holdings Private Limited® (Formerly Known as Oner Infowech Services
Private limited)

Shriram Life Trsurance Company Linsited

Shriram General Insurance Company Limited

SGI Philippines General Insurance Ca. Ing.*

Shtiram Finance Limited
Shriram Housing Finance Limited

Vice-Chairmun & Execulive Director

M. Akhilesh Kumar Sin

Mr. M R_Shashiblushan

Mamaging Direetor
Company Secretary

Ma_Trina Nandi

* There were ho transactions with these parties during the year ended March 31, 2423 and March 31, 2024




SHRIRAM CREDIT COMPANY LIMITED

B. Transuclions with Related Parties

Particulars

As at 31 March 2024

As at 31 March 2023

Shriram Finance Limited

Brokerage Tncome

03.14:

45.62

Deposit Income

69.46

160.74

Commission Income

4,165.98

15,403,992

Interest Received

062

498.72

Maintenancs of NCD & Equity Shares

232 34

300

Marketing I

16.55

36.63

| Other Expenses

0.5

42509

Other Receipts

2,051.26)

1.64

§07.42

] Reimburgenent of Expenses
Rent Paid

15.36

50.26

Rental Incame

1.60

1.53

566

Emplovee benefit
Finuncial Consultancy Fees Income

50,43

Interast Income on Investment

443 62

Investment In Fixed Deposit Receipt

1.785.51

Shriram Housing Finance Limited

Maintenance of NCD} & Equity Shares

.44

0.61

| Other Expenses

30.00

Renlal Tncome

096

Sale of Services

1,003 41

Shriram Value services

Brokerage Income

202.03

Tnterest Paid

Q.54

Loan Borrowed

384.26,

Muintenance of NCD & Equity Shares

0.09

Other Currant Liability

[ Other Expenses

5,000.00

Rovalty paid

19.20

Shriram Capital Limited

Reimbursgrsent of Expenses

0.56

Rent Paid

447

Shriram Ievestment Holdings Private Limwited

Rent Paid

442

Reimbursement of Expenses

0.96

Shriram Li rance Co., Lt

Distribution Income

10.070.33

627554

FD Commission

D.01

0.07

Gratutit ve Ench Liability T

73.35

| Tosurance Premium

41.42

3259

Driher Expen:

B.62

131.81

Rental Income

50.59

4844

Shriram General Insmrauge Conspany Timited

Distribulign Income

7.69

26.75

FD Cominissian

017

0.0

Insurance Premium

14.62

19.15

Rental Income

46.4%

36.57

Wav?Wealth Insurance Brokers Private Limited

Interest Income

1.42

Eoan & Advance given

67.00

Reimbursesnent of Expenses

0.06

Consultancy & Marketing Fee

24.62

Rental Income

38.713

Nova¢ Technotopy Sobutions Private Limited

IT & Metwork Suppart Services

104.30)

120.10

Pavroll Processing

13.13

15,38

Maintenance of NCD & Equity Shares

0.05

017

Training & learning Expenses

0.02

Shriram Overseas Investment Private limited

Loan taken

2,000.00)

Tnterest Expenses

78.14

| Shrirgm Ownership Trust

Brokerage Income

£0.84|

Payment To Key Managerial Personuels
Payment to Key Managerial Persannels

170.40

211.52

C. Balances with related parties [Debit/{Credif)]




SHRIRAM CREDIT COMPANY LIMITED

Tuvestment in FI¥

Shrimm Finance Limited

4476.34

6.143 56

Investment in NCD

Shriram Finance Limited

229.64

215.88

|Expenses Payable

Shriram Wealth Limited

Novae Technology Solutions Private Limited

143

.63

Loan & Advances Outstanding

Way2?Wealth Insurance Brokers Private Limued

10.21

Borrowings

2,000.00

Shriram Overseas Tnvestment Private Limited

Shriram Value Services Lid

Rovalty payable

Shriram Value Serviges Ltd

Payable

Shriram Finance Limited

4.754.77

Movac Technology Solutions Privte Limited

1.42

Way2Wealth Ingurance Brokers Private Limited

1.53

Shriram Value Services Lid

B9.77

Kev Managenal Personnel

Receivable

Shrirasn Finance Limited

608 72

WayZWealth Insurance Brokers Private Limited

57.60

Shriram Investment Holdings Private limited

2,:400.00

Shriram Housing Finance Limited

Shriram Value Services T4d

3125

224

Novac Technology Solutions Private Limited

530.91

Shriram Life Insurance Co, 14d
Shriram General Insurance_Company Limited

116.31




SHRIRAM CREMT COMPANY LIMITED
Motes to the Consolkdated Fi lal &

Mote : 33 Contimgent Liahilities not previded for

Rs. in lakhs

: As at As at
Particulurs March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Shriram Credit Company Limited 17268 120,65
Shriram Fortune Solutivns Limited 346.58 -
Shriram Wealth Advisor Limited - -
Shriram Finascial Product Solution Private Limited - .
Shriram Insight Share Brokers Limited 934.76 1.479.90
Shtiram Assets Management Company Limited 185 279
Way 2 Wealth Brokers Pvi, Lid 3,833.70 3,775.15

Note: 34 Seguctt Reporting

The: Group is engaged in financing, share broking, distribution of financial products, commodities broking and wealth management businessas. Segment Revenue, Segment Results, Segment Assets and

Segment Liahilities include the respective wnounts identifisble to cach of the segments. The Group operates in single geographical segment. Minarity inferest is not part of segment lizbilities

Rs. in lakhg
Year ended March 31,2024
Particulars o o . Financial Praducts Wealth
Financing Activity Stock Broking “‘I;'i'smm:.“““ Ma“";n_‘ Unallocable Tetal

Reveaue from aperations

Inteiest income 281.32 2,833.30 259 463.56 3,580.77
Dividend in¢ome - 122 - - 3.22
Rental income - 4437 - - 4437
Fee and commission income - 10,380 60 12,048.64 - (17798) 22.251.26
Net gain on fair value changes 153.7% 467.78 2013 296,74 23844
Sale of services, Software products & Licenses 343180 - 356.23 192.56 {1,136.03} 3.400.55
Seg From wperati 391690 13,729.27 12,927.59 952,35 {1,303.01) 30,218,62
Other income 6.71 137,50 119.59 20.21 {0.29) 364.03
Tatal income 4,003.61 1336707 13,047.18 973,08 {1,308.30) 3,582,465
Expenses '

Finance casts 26.77 527.49 28 B8 124.11 (17798} 58927
Fees and Commission Expenses 2,1B6.67 3,132.53 6,302 85 - (1,130.03) 11,092.03
Employes benefits expense 53550 6,295.32 256113 789.76 10,181.71
D intion and izt 353 564.21 397.00 8925 1,074.11
[Provisions and Write offs 1682 2.46 - 19.28
Other expenses 296 K2 1665.74 1,282.17 578492 4,823.65
5 p 3,636.21 13,187.76 10,632.04 1.552.04 (1,303.01) 17,780,05
Segment Profit/ (loss) befere taxation 317.41 679,31 2415.15 (608.97) =0.29 2,302.60
Tax expense {34.33) 616.03 {139.98) 2230 - 463.52
Profit for the period 35124 6327 2,555,13 {631.27) [0.29) 1335.08




SHRIRAM CREDIT COMPANY LIMITED
Notes to the Cansalidated Fi ial 5

Rs. in lakhs
Year ended March 31,2023
Particulars S . Financial Producis Wealth
Financing Activity Stock Broking Distribution Management Unallocable Tetal
Revenue from speratisny
[Interest income 35843 1,195.29 62.12 47768 2,093.52
IDividend incame - 3.69 - - 3.69
Rental incorme 0.91 2292 0.96 - . 24,79
Fee and commission incotne - 988333 17407.75 - (608.21) 26,682 87
Net gain on fair value changes 107.78 17.96 - 39.97 165.70
Sale of services, Software producis & Licenses 5.010.20 - B68. 72 147.4% 6,026.48
Segment revenue Tram operations 547732 11,123.1% 13,339,621 665.14 (608.21) M,997.06
Othet income B3.56 125.67 141,90 5.04 356.17
Total imcome 556088 11,248.86 11.431.52 670.18 (608.21) 35,353,11
Expenses
Finance costs 228.51 35532 68.50 157.02 (17.45) 791.94
Fees and Commission Expenses - ExeaLi] - . - 371210
[Emyployes benefits expense 1,950.17 5429.19 351z 436.01 - 11,32807
Depreciation and amaoriization expenses. 69.77 50139 390 80 36.70 1,007.65
Pravisions and Write offs -3.79 14.93 - - - 1.13
Other expenses 3,554.67 4.864.36 1445734 459.92 {590.30) 12,745.49
Segment expenses 5,799.3F 1153729 1343833 1,089,855 (608.21) 36,256,38
Sezment Profli / (koss) before tazativn (238.44) (285.43) 43.19 {419.47) - (903.16)
Tax expense 31.26 13.77 13.47 {37.39) - 21.11
Profit for the year (269.70) 1302.21) 20,51 (341.90) - 924.27)
Rs. in lakhs
. - o - . Fimancial Products Wealth
Particulars Finaneiog Activity Stock Broking Disteibistion Management Unalecable Tutal
As at March 31, 2024
Segment Assets 21,939.09 48,940.55 5,685.18 B.678.64 - 85,243 45
Unallocable assets - - - = {16.773.25) (16.773.25)
Total Agzels 21,939.09 48,940,558 5,685,18 5,675.64 {16,773.25) 68470.21
Segment Ligbihities 2,998.40 27,84E.14 4,066.30 448.75 - 35411.59
Unallacable liabilities ‘- - - - (1,850.27) {1.850.27)
Total Liabilities 2,998.40 27.898.14 4,066.30 448,75 (1,850.27) 33.561.33
As at March 31, 2023
Segment Asigis 23,910.99 19,658.85 4,475 36 §,438.05 . 76,433.75
Unalfocable assets - - - - (20.433.54) {20,433 54)
Toatal Assets 135.910.99 39,653.835 447536 5.438.05 {20,433.54) 56,050,271
Sepment Liabilities 542017 19,011.20 3,208.53 381.39 - 28,022.20
Unallocable lighilities - - - = {4.304.62) (4.304.62)
Total Liabikitics 542117 19,011.20 3,208,53 35139 {4,304.62) 13,717.67

potential shares cutstanding

Asat As at
Particulars December 31, 2023 Mareh 31,2023
No, of shares considered as basis weighted average shares 2.40.63 129.00 2.40.63.120.00
sutstanding ,40,63,129. ,40,63,129.
Add: Effect of dilutive issues of shares - -
Munber of shares considered as weighted average shares and 2,40,63,129.00 2,40,63,129.00

Nole: 35 Reconciliation of Basic awd Diluted shares used iu compating earnings per share (As per Accounting Standard 20)

y conforming (o current year's classification.

Neie 36: Previous year's figuncs have beom 1/ d

Note 37: Details of CSR expenditure:

Particulars

Az at
December 31, 2023

Grass amount required to be spent by the company duzing the year

arate Bank Accpunt

103z

As at
| March 31,3023 |

11.86

10.32

1185




SHRIRAM CREDIT COMPANY LIMITED
Nates to the Consolidated Fi ial §

Nate 38: Disclosure under the MSME Aci 2006, (s per the intimnation received frem the yveador)

Based on the intimation received by the coaspany, some of the suppliers have canfirmed to be registered under “The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development (MSMED) Act, 20067

Accardingly, the discl relating o unpaid 45 al the year ended together with intesest paid /payable are furnished below:
Rs. in lakhs

As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2024 Moarch 31, 2023
The principal amount remaining wpaid to lier as at the end of the year .00 B
The interest due thereon remaining unpaid fo supplier as at the end of the year B .
The amoun] of interest paid in terms of Secton 16, along with the amount of payment made to the supplier beyond the
appointed day during the year b =
The amount of interest due and payabte for the year of delay in making payment (which havs been paid bat boyond the
appointed day duning the year) but without adding the interest specified under this Act - -
'The amou of interest accrued during the year and remaining wmpaid at the end of the year
'The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the
interest dues as sbove are actually paid to the small enlemrise for the purpose of disall e as a deductibl _ _
expenditure under section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium E Develop Azt 2006
Nete 39:
A. M’s Way to Wealth Sccuntics Private Limived {“Transferor Company™) was amal d with M/s Way 2 Wealih Brokers Private Limited (“Transferes Company™) with effect from 1st April, 2023

vide order of the Regional Directos, South East Region, Hyderabad, dated 18th July, 2023, Accordingly, Més Way 2 Wealth Brokers Private Limited has become the direct subsidiary of Shriram Credit
Company Limited

B.Shriram Credit Co. Ltd. (SCCL) had acquired the entire equily stake of NOVAC Digital Services Pvt. Ltd. (NDSPL) from NOVAC Technology Solutions Pvi Lid {NTSPL) in July 2023.
Subscquently it November 2023, SCCL had sold off its 3{% equity stake to M1, D. Padmanablhan, As on 31st Masch, 2024, SCCL held 69 99% equity shares in NDSPL.

Akhilesh Kumar Sin ‘l
Vice Chaiman
DIN : 00421577

Managing Director
DIN : 00492377

j o ﬁ;mt‘

Trima Nandi
Company Secrvlary
Place:Chennai

Diate:24-05-2024

Place: Kolkata
Date: 24-05-2024
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Note 41;

SHRIRAM CREDIT COMPANY LIMITED
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

INCOME TAXES

Indian companies are subject to Indian income tax on a standalone basis. Each entity is assessed to tax on taxable profits determined for each

fiscal year beginning on April 1 and ending on March 31.

Statutory income taxes are assessed based on book profits prepared under generally accepted accounting principles in India adjusted in
accordance with the provisions of the (Indian) Income tax Act, 1961, Such adjustments generally relate to depreciation of fixed assets,

disallowances of certain provisions and accruals, exempt income etc.

a) Income tax expenses Rs. in lakhs
. As at As at
|
Particulars Murch 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Current fax:
Current tax 875.21 35593
Tax pertaining to earlicr years (0.60) 78.95
Deferred tax (411.09) 413.77)
Total 463.52 21.11

A reconciliation of income tax expense applicable to accounting profit before tax at the statutory income tax rate to income tax expense

recognised for the year is indicated below;

Rs. in lakhs
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Profit before tax 2,802.60 -803.17
Enacted tax rate in India Refer Note Below
Expected income tax expensc at enacted tax rale 446.66 (152.10)
Tax impact on account of -
Adjustment in respect of current tax for earlicr years 8.02
Exempt Income -
At average corporate tax rate of 25.168% (Previous year: 25.168%)
Depreciation ender Income-tax Act at different rates -24.18 (21.14)
Provision against loans and advances disatlowed -
Expenses allowed only on payment basis 4,08
Expenses not deductible i determining taxable profits 138.70 90.26
Deductions allowable under tax laws - (0.26)
Tax on expenditure not considered for tax provision (net of allowance}
Tax Impact on ¢limination of unrealised profit on inlercompuny transactions -
Deferred Tax Provision -85.55
Deferred Tax Asset not created on losses 176.98 -
Reversal of Deferred Tax Liability earlier created to the extent -73.80
of busincss losses
Tax impact due to revaluation of deferred tax -163.95
Others -130.48 100.38
B/F loses utilised 159.62
Cpn MAT Credit w/back in books 20.69
MAT liability -104.73
Permanent Differences 0.53 -
Income tax Short provision FY 24 033
Short term and Long term capital gain chargeable at different rates 10.29 3.98
Adjustment due to difference in tax rate 80.31 -
Tax expenses pertaining to current year 463.52 21,11
Effective ineome tax rate 16.54% -2 34%

Note: Enacted fax rate in India




SHRIRAM CREDIT COMPANY LIMITED
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

b) Current Tax Liabilities! (Assets) -Net

Rs. in lakhs
Particulars Asat As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Current ax liabilities/ (Assets) - Net 3,996.13 2,684.46

¢) Deferred Tax Liabilities

The majority of the deferved tax balance represents differential rates of depreciation for property plant and equipment under income tax act and
disallowance of certain expenditure under income tax aci. Significant components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recopnized in the financial

statements are as follows;

Rs. in lakhs
. As at As at

Particutars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Deferred Tax Asset:
O account of depreciation 338.52 306.96
Reserve for Unexpired Risk - -
On Account of Employee benefits 24013 275.24
On Account of Bonus - -
Allowance for doubtful receivables and advances - -
Property - carrying amount other than on account of fair
valuation. 0.92 -
Fair valuation of securities - -
On Security Deposit 16.49 0.63
ROU asset & Lease liability 34.77 -
Mutual Funds and other Investments 17.05 -
MAT Credit 431.36 300.93
Amortization of Expense 2536 -
Other temporary differences 8.20 -
Others 751.47 639.05
Deferred Tax Liability:
On account of depreciation - -
On Account of Employee benefits 2443
Mutual Funds and other Investments 4342 24535
On Lease (29.67) (41.99)
Fair valuation on derecognition of Financial Instrument 48.75 -
Fair valuation of securities - -
Others 2.28 -
Deferred Tax Asset/(Liabilities) (Net) 1,775.07 1,319.46




SHRIRAM CREDIT COMPANY LIMITED
Notes to lhe Consolidaied Fi inl 8 for the year ended March 31, 2024

Note 42: Employee benefits

1} Defined contriburion plan

Particulars Fyr the year ended March 31, 2024 ! For the year ended March 31, 2023
Rs, in Lakhs
Empl " Contribution to Emp Provident Fynd 512,20 588,00
Employers’ Contribution ta National Pension Scheme 078
Employers’ Contribution to ESI 0.00
Toial 512.99 SN3.00

b) Change im Present value in defined benefit obligation

For the year ended March 31, 2024 I For the year ended March 31, 2023

Particulars
Rs. in Lakha
Present value of defined benefit obligation at the beginninyg
of the year 999,50 1,196.16
Inierest cost 73.02 B1.62
Current service cogt 126.74 £1.57
Past Service Cost -3.13
Liability transfred In /Acquisitions - 23 40
Liability Transfe i In 132,99 3.84
{Liability Teansferred Dut -19.52 -288.72
Impact of lisbility agsumed or {setiled) -
(Benefit paid directly by the Employer) -H18.61 -65.85
Actuasial {gain)/loss on obligation-Due to changes in
Demagraphic Assumptions -
Actuarial {gain)foas on obligation-Due to changes in
Fi ial A pti -126.27
Actwanial (gain)}loss on obligation-Due to experience B.B6
Actuarial losses (gains) arising from experience adjustmenis ! -7.41
Actuarial (gain}/oss on obligation 3711 -27.33
Present value of defined benefit obligation at the enf of
the year 111338 1,009.15
] Amiount recognired in the Balance Sheet
As at March 31,2024 | As ai March 31, 2023
Particulars Tovin Lakhs
Present value of defined benefit obligation at the end of the
vear 111338 100915 L]
Fair Value of plan nssets as al the end of the vear 111.15 103.82
Net obligation as at the end of the year 1,001.23 20533
d} Net Gratuity cost
For the year tmled March 31, 2024 f For the year ended March 31, 2023
Particulars
Ra. in Lakhs
Recognized in Siatement of Profit asd Loss
Services Cost (including Past Service Cast) 10R.29
Interest Cost (Net of Interest Income) 73.02 8162036
Expectad Return on Plan ascets 7.36 717917
[Current Service cost 2567 BL.57454
Total 199.63 156,02
ecogrized in Qther Comprehensive Income {(OCT) -7.63 -13,45049
Re- t due to ch n the present value
‘:esulting from experience adj 0.00
Remensursonent of ned defined benefil lrability 35.47
IRemeasurement {gains)/ losses in other comprehensive
income -115.09]
Gratuity Cost in Total Comprehensive Income 11133 111.77]
) Comnp ¢ Al - Aount recognised in the Balance Sheet
L Particulars As al March 31, 2024 ] As at March 31, 2023
Rs. in Lakhs
Present value of defined benefit obligation at the ead of the
year 406.02 451,68
Fair Vlue of plan assets as at the end of the year - 103.32
Net obligation as &t the end of the year 406.02 556.50




SHRIRAM CREDIT COMPANY LIMITED
Notes to the C. lidated Finawcial Stat ts

Nete 43; Disclosure a5 required by Ind A5 116

As lesces:
The Company has entered into commercial lenses for leasing of prcmises. These leases have an average life of 2-10 years which are renewable on a periodic basis by
mutual consent of both parties. There is no restreition imposed by lease vents such as those concerning dividends, additional debts ete.
Rs. in lakhs
Vear ended March 31, | Year ended March 31,
Particulars 2024 2023
(a) |Depreciation charge for Right of Use Asseis 852.30 -
(b __|Irerest sxpense on Joase habilitiea 164).81 -
Expense relaiing to short-ierm leases accounted for applying
(c) _ |paragraph & of Ind AS 116* 102.58 547.00
Expense relating to leases of low-value assets accounted for
(d} _|applying paragraph 6 of Ind AS 116* - -
Expense relating to varable kase pay ot included in the
(e} |measurement of lease liabilities 1,147.17 -
[Income from subleasing of right-ofsuse assets earned dunng
{ey [the period - 2292
(f) {Total cash outflow for leages during the period 68931 $92.29
(h) jAdditions to right-of-use assets 1.349.53 -
Gains or losses arising from aale and {easeback transactions
(i} __|during the year - -
Carrying amouni of right-of-use assety at the end aof the )
(g} reporling Een'ud 2253 62 1,924.44 .
(h} |Profit on Rent Concession due to Covid 19 - -
Maturity Analysis of lease lisbilities on aw pndi ted basis: Rs._in lakhs
<1 year 1-5 years > 5 years Total
|As at 31 03-2024 977.91 1,732.92 71.16 1,783.9%
Asat 31-03-2023 . 184.83 1,940.65 - 2.125.48

*The company has elected 10 apply para 6 of Ind AS 116 for short term Jeases and |eases of lowevalue assets. As per the same, the compnay has recognised the lease
payments associated with those |eascs as an expenses in the Statement of profit and loss account.

For right-of-use asseis which meet the definition of investment property, the disclosures given in (a), (b),& {d) of the abave table arc given in Nete 13 of the financial
statements.
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Part “B”: Associates and Joint Ventures- NONE
Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate Companies and Joint Ventures

Name of Associates/Joint Ventures Name 1 Name 2 Name 3
1. Latest audited Balance Sheet Date .
N.A. N.A. N.A.

2, Shares of Associate/Joint Ventures
held by the company on the year end N.A. N.A. N.A.
No.
A = A e R = o = = = — e —— == — = ——r— — =

mount of Investment in Associates/Joint ik S NA.
Venture
Extend of Holding % N.A. N.A. N.A.
3. Description of how there is significant NA. NA. NA.
influence
4. Reason why the associate/joint
venture is not consolidated N.A, N.A. N.A.
5. Networth attributable to Shareholding
as per latest audited Balance Sheet N.A. N.A. N.A.
6. Profit / Loss for the year N.A. N.A. N.A.
i. Considered in Consolidation N.A. N.A. N.A.
i. Not Considered in Consolidation N.A. N.A. N.A.

1. Names of associates or joint ventures which are yet to commence operations. - Nil
2. Names of associates or joint ventures which have been liquidated or sold during the year. - Nil

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Shriram Credit Company Limited
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Akhilesh Kumar Singh M R Shashibhushan
Vice Chairman Managing Director
DIN: 00421577 DIN : 00492377
: g ).
_ . N aAJA
Date: May 24, 2024 Trina Nandi
Place: Chennai Company Secretary
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